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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Revenues from core operating activities
Profit / (loss) on operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax

Net profit (loss) on continuing operations
attributable to shareholders of the Compa
Net cash flow from operating activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

Net cash flow from financing activities
Average weighted humber of shares
Basic profit (loss) from continuing activitie:
per ordinary share (in PLN)

Total assets

Total liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to the shareholders of
the Issuer

Share capital

12-month period
ended
31 December 2013

22,15
(4,365
8!

8!
(238,702
(142

170,35:
1,479,665,36(

0.000:

As at
31 December 201z

1,525,74.
313,72.
313,12

59¢

1,212,02(
147,96

12-month period
ended
31 December 2012

6,46
(215
6,98

6,98
(84,799
(1,135
216,721
1,127,129,12!

0.006:
As at
31 December 201z

1,238,27(
26,33!

26,33

1,211,93:
147,96

12-month period
ended

31 December 2013
in EUR '000

5,26:

(2,037

2(

20
(56,685

(34

40,45.
1,479,665,36(

0.0000

As at

31 December 201z
in EUR '000
367,89

75,64

75,50:

14

292,25(
35,67!

12-month period
ended

31 December 2012
in EUR '000

1,550

(52)

1,674

1,674
(20,318)

(272)

51,928
1,127,129,125

0.0015

As at
31 December 2012
in EUR '000
302,889
6,443

6,443

296,446
36,194

Selected items from the statement of financial tomsipresented in the report in EUR were convetsidg the
average EUR exchange rate announced by the Natienalk of Poland on 31 December 2013: PLN/EUR
4.1472, and on 31 December 2012: PLN/EUR 4.0882.

Selected items from the statement of comprehenso@me and the statement of cash flow were condere
EUR according to the exchange rate announced by#t®mnal Bank of Poland constituting the arithroeti
average of the EUR exchange rates which were ateffn the last day of a completed month in finaingéar

2013 and financial year 2012 (4.2110 PLN/EUR arid 36 PLN/EUR respectively).

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Note

Year ended

31 December 201z

Year ended

31 December 2012

Accounting principles (policy) and additional expddiory notes to the financial statements on padges48 constitute their
integral part.
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Continued activities

Revenues from core operating activities
Own costs from core operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation

Wages and salaries

Other costs by type

Other operating income

Other operating expenses

Loss on operating activities

Financial income
Profit on financial activities

Profit before taxation
Current income tax
Deferred tax

Total income tax

Net profit on continuing operations

Net profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Average weighted number of ordinary shares

Net profit/ (loss) on
continuing operations per share attributable to
shareholders of the parent company (in PLN)

Krzysztof Adaszewski

/President of the Management Boar  Vice-President of the Management Board/

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2013

Note

(restated)
131 22,15 6,467
13.2 (22,657 (3,858)
(30 9
13.3 (1,796 (1,269)
134 (2,043 (1,452)
' 23
(117)
(4,365) (215)
135 4,45 7,202
4,450 7,202
85 6,987
14 - -
85 6,987
85 6,987
85 6,987
1,479,665,36' 1,127,129,125
15 0.000 0.0062
Maciej Kotlicki Teresa Rogala

/on behalf of SFERIA Spétka Akcyjna/

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Accounting principles (policy) and additional expddiory notes to the financial statements on padges48 constitute their

integral part.
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Non-current financial assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans granted

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Other prepayments

Trade and other receivables
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Equity

16
18

19.1
19.2
20

Note

attributable to shareholders of the Company, of wtih:

Share capital
Supplementary capital
Own shares
Uncovered losses
Accumulated losses
Net profit for the current period

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Liabilities from issue of bonds
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Liabilities from issue of commercial papers
Accruals

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Krzysztof Adaszewski
/President of the Management Board/

21.1
21.2
21.3

22
22

23
22,23
22,23

(restated)
13 21
1,272,98 966,203
1,273,113 966,224
186,02 137,995
1,04 -
65,54 134,036
2 6
9
252,629 272,046
1,525,742 1,238,270

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

(restated)
147,96 147,967
1,140,86 1,141,006
(150)
(76,807 (76,892)
(76,892 (83,879)
8 6,987
1,212,020 1,211,931
45,58 -
267,54 -
313,123 -
41 346
6 -
25,897
11 96
599 26,339
1,525,742 1,238,270

Maciej Kotlicki

icé\President of the Management Board/

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Note

Teresa Rogala

Year ended

/on behalf of SFERIA Spétka Akcyjna/

Year ended

Accounting principles (policy) and additional expddiory notes to the financial statements on padges48 constitute their

integral part.

5



Midas S.A.
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(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

Gross profit

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed and intbigassets
Interest and commission costs

Exchange rate differences

Change in the balance of assets and liabilitiede® to operating activities:
— Trade and other receivables

— Trade and other liabilities

— Accruals

Interest income

Other

Adjustments of total gross profit

Other cash flows on operating activities
Loans granted

Repayment of loans granted

Interest received

Other

Other cash flows on operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

Acquisition of subsidiary — deferred payment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment andgiltée assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipmed intangible assets
Net cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

Issue of bonds

Expenses related to issuing bonds

Repayment of loans obtained

Interest paid on loans obtained

Issue of commercial papers

Repayment of commercial papers issued

Interest paid on commercial papers issued
Expenditures related to issuing commercial papers
Commission and interest paid in connection withikdaorrowings
Expenditures related to share capital increase
Proceeds from share issuance

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivakent
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of thegr

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

20.2
20.1
20.3

20.4

20

Krzysztof Adaszewski Maciej Kotlicki

/President of the Management Board/ /Vice-President of the Management Board/

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
(restated)

85 6,987

30 9
21,958 3,850
(5) 8

9 809

112 117

19 (32)
(22,149) (6,870)
699 223

758 5,101
(245,000) (90,315)

5,000 -
540 320

- 95
(239,460) (89,900)
(238,702) (84,799)
- (2,136)

(142) (8)

- 9

(142) (1,135)

4 -

200,099 -

(483) -

- (7,010)

- (523)

- 20,000
(22,250) (71,500)
(3,984) (1,730)

- (297)

(3,035) -

- (3,964)

- 281,750
170,351 216,726
(68,493) 130,792
134,036 3,244
65,543 134,036

Teresa Rogala
/on behalf of SFERIA Spotka Akcyjna/

Accounting principles (policy) and additional expddiory notes to the financial statements on padges48 constitute their

integral part.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 Deceg3
(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Note Share capital Supplemczn;ie;g Own shares Uncovered losses Total equity
As at 1 January 2013 147,967 1,141,006 (150) (76,892) 1,211,931
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 21.3 (146 15( 4
Net profit for the financial year - - - 85 85
Total comprehensive income for the period : 8! 85
As at 31 December 2013 147,967 1,140,860 - (76,807) 1,212,020

Note Share capital Supplemczngﬁg Own shares Uncovered losses Total equity
State as at 1 January 2012 29,593 435,655 (150) (83,879) 381,219
Issue of shares 118,37: 710,24( : 828,614
Share issuance costs (4,889 (4,889)
Net profit for the financial year - - - 6,987 6,987
Total comprehensive income for the period : 6,98 6,987
As at 31 December 2012 147,967 1,141,006 (150) (76,892) 1,211,931

Krzysztof Adaszewski Maciej Kotlicki Teresa Rogala

/President of the Management Board/ /Vice-President of the Management Board/

/on behalf of SFERIA Spétka Akcyjna/

Accounting principles (policy) and additional expdory notes to the financial statements on padesi8 constitute their integral part.



Midas S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decef(i3
Accounting policies and notes
(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (POLICIES) AND ADDITIONAL
EXPLANATORY NOTES

1. General information

The financial statements of MIDAS S.A. (“Midas” ethCompany”) cover the year ended on 31 Decemb#8 20
and include comparative data for the year endesllonecember 2012.

The Company was established pursuant to a NotBeald of 15 December 1994. The Company's registered
office is located in Warsaw, at ul. Lwowska 19. U8 December 2012, the Company operated in actael
with the provisions of the Act on National Investmhéunds and their Privatisation of 30 April 192& of 1
January 2013, in connection with the entry intaéoof the Act of 30 March 2012 Repealing the AcNational
Investment Funds and their Privatisation and AmegndCertain Acts, the Company operated pursuanhéo t
Commercial Companies Code and other legislation.

The Company is entered in the Commercial RegidténeoNational Court Register kept by the Distiurt in
Warsaw, Division Xl Commercial of the National GbRegister, under KRS 0000025704. The Company was
granted statistical number REGON 010974600.

The Company has an unlimited period of operation.
The main area of the Company’s business activitielsides:
« financial holdings' activities (64.20.2)

e other credit granting forms (64.92.2)
- other financial services activities, not classifietbewhere, except for insurance and pension funds
(64.99.2)

< other activities auxiliary to financial servicegcept for insurance and pension furié6.19.2)
. buying and selling of own real estate (68.10.2).

Midas is the parent company of the Midas S.A. Gatroup (the “Group”).

The immediate parent company of Midas (first-deguaeent) is Litenite Ltd. (“Litenite”) with its resfered
office in Nicosia, Cyprus - an entity controlled br. Zygmunt SolorZZak. As at 31 December 2013, the
shareholders of Litenite Ltd. were: Ortholuck Lathd LTE Holdings SPV.

2. Identification of the consolidated financial statenents

The Company prepared the consolidated financiémsiants for the year ended on 31 December 201Zhwhi
were approved for publication on 21 March 2014.

3.  Composition of the Management Board of the Company

As at 31 December 2013 the composition of the CatyigaManagement Board was as follows:
1. Krzysztof Adaszewski — President of the ManagerBaxard,
2. Maciej Kotlicki — Vice-President of the Managem®&uard.

On 17 December 2013, the Supervisory Board of thmany, acting in accordance with Article 12 p&.3lof

the Statute of the Company, recalled Mr. Dariuskasiewicz from the Management Board of the Company.
Mr. Dariusz tukasiewicz was Vice-President of tharidgement Board of the Company from 16 December
2012, and the recall was made without any reasonglggven.




Midas S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decef(i3
Accounting policies and notes
(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

4.  Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements were approved for patidio by the Management Board on 21 March 2014.

5. Investments of the Company

The Company holds investments in the following #dibsies (the table below shows direct and indirect
subsidiaries):

Entity Registered office Scope of activity The Company’s % share in equity
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
CenterNet S.A. (“CenterNet”) Warsaw, Poland telecommunications 100% 100%
Mobyland Sp. z 0.0. (“Mobyland”) Warsaw, Poland telecommunications 100% 100%
Conpidon Ltd. (“Conpidon”) Nicosia, Cyprus holding 100% 100%
Aero2 Sp. z 0.0. (“Aero2”) Warsaw, Poland telecommunications 100% 100%
Nova Capital Sp. z 0.0. (“Nova Capital”’) | Warsaw, Poland holding - 85.2%

The only indirect subsidiary among those listedvabis Aero2 (through Conpidon).

As at 31 December 2013 and as at 31 December #@d Bhare in the total number of votes held byGheup
in subsidiaries is equal to the share of the Giiaupe capital of those entities. An exception Wawa Capital
Sp. z 0.0., in which the Group held 85.2 per cdnthe share capital and 100 per cent of the voseata31
December 2012.

Information on the merger between Conpidon and Bligéhich was registered in 2014, is set forth ind$@2
and 33 hereto.

Information on the merger between Nova Capital Aatb2, which was registered in 2013, is set fonttNbte
32 hereto.

6.  Significant values based on professional judgemeand estimates

6.1. Professional judgement

In the process of applying accounting policies, Menagement Board made the following judgementsnigav
the greatest effect on the balance sheet valuemess$ of assets and liabilities:

1. An evaluation of the occurrence of conditions foe tmpairment of shares in subsidiaries,

2. An evaluation of the feasibility of asset compoisenvm deferred tax,

3. Treating all companies in the Group as one opeayagment and one unit generating cash flows,

4. An assessment of the possibility of settling pegdiaurt proceedings,

5. An assessment of separating the option of earlgym@pnt as a separate instrument for valuation and
disclosure.

6.2. Uncertainty of estimates and assumptions

Basic assumptions regarding the future and othgr daurces of uncertainty as at the balance sheet da
involving a significant risk of adjustments of thalance sheet value of assets and liabilities énfatiowing
financial year, are discussed below. The Compag@ed assumptions and estimates about the fututbeo
basis of the knowledge it possessed when prep#mmdinancial statements. Those assumptions amthagss
may be subject to change as a result of futuretevemsulting from market changes or changes beybed
control of the Company. Such changes are refléotedtimates or assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of assets

The Management Board of the Company did not idgmtify grounds for declaring impairment of the vatdie
shares in subsidiaries, and therefore did not @artyan asset impairment test (Note 18).
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Accounting policies and notes
(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

Deferred income tax asset component
The Company does not recognise the deferred incaxasset due to uncertainty as to its exerciggbili

7. Basis for preparation of the financial statements

These financial statements were prepared in acnoedaith the historical cost principle.

These financial statements have been presentealishPzlotys (“PLN") and all values are rounded ttee
nearest thousand (PLN ‘000) except when otherwidieated.

These financial statements were prepared assummidhte Company would continue as a going concethd
foreseeable future. As at the date of approvahe$¢ financial statements there are no facts ourtistances
that would indicate a threat to the continuing agiens of the Company.

7.1. Declaration on compliance

These financial statements were prepared in aconoedwith the International Financial Reporting Sinals
(the “IFRS") and the IFRS approved by the EuropBaion (the “EU IFRS”). As on the date of approvél o
these statements for publication, taking into aottlie EU process of implementing the IFRS starglardi the
business conducted by the Company, in the confakicaccounting policies applied by the Compahg, IFRS
differ from the EU IFRS. The Company has made dsbheopportunity arising when applying the Interoaal
Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the E@ppfying IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, the amenhd&d
27 and IAS 28, only from annual periods beginniregrf 1 January 2014.

The EU IFRS comprise standards and interpretatonepted by the International Accounting Stand&mwtsrd
(“IASB”) and the International Financial Reportihgerpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).

7.2.  Functional currency and currency of the financial satements

The Company's functional currency and the reportimgency of these financial statements is thesRatioty
(PLN).

8. Changes in the accounting principles applied

The accounting principles (policy) adopted in prama the financial statements are consistent withsé
adopted in preparing the financial statements efGbmpany for the year ended on 31 December 2G&2pe
for the following new or amended standards andpmégations in force for annual periods beginningoo after
1 January 2013:

« |IAS 19 Employee Benefittamended 2011) — which apply to annual periodsninétg on or after 1 January
2013,

The application of such amendments had no impadherfinancial position or comprehensive incomethaf

Company.

- Amendments to IAS Presentation of financial statements: presentatfritems of other comprehensive
income— which apply to annual periods beginning on ¢erat July 2013,

Amendments concerning the grouping of other itemsmf comprehensive income. Other items of
comprehensive income subject to reclassificatiothin future to profit or loss are presented sepgrdtom
items which will not be reclassified to profit arsk.

The application of these changes had no effecthenfinancial position or the value of the comprediesm
income of the Company, or on the scope of inforamafiresented in the Company’s financial statements.

« |AS 1 Clarification of requirements of comparatidata (amendment),

The amendments clarify differences between voligtaresented supplementary comparative data aed th
minimum comparative data required. The Company rebistv comparative data in supplementary explanatory
notes, since it voluntarily discloses comparatietadfor an additional comparative period in relatio the
required minimum of one comparative period. The raneents specify that the consolidated statement of
financial position at the beginning of a compamatperiod (1 January 2012 in the case of the Company
presented because of a retrospective change tagsiftcation of an item in the statement of finahposition,
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need not accompany the comparative data in thelesmgptary explanatory notes. Those changes onlgeran
presentation, and have no effect on the finan@altipn or operating results of the Company.

- Amendments of IAS 1IMhcome taxes: Tax Realisation of Assetghich apply for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012 - in the EU, applicadil¢he latest to annual periods beginning on ceraft
January 2013,

The application of these changes had no effecherfihancial position or operating result of then@any, or
on the scope of information presented in the Coryigdimancial statements.

« IFRS 13Fair Value Measurement which applies to annual periods beginning oafter 1 January 2013.
IFRS 13 introduces one set of rules concerningwthg in which the fair value of financial and nondncial
assets and liabilities is established, where sathation is required or allowed by the IFRS. IFRSdbes not
affect when the Company is obliged to make an talnaaccording to fair value. The regulations oRE- 13
apply to both initial valuations and valuations madter initial disclosure.

IFRS 13 requires new disclosure in the area ofrtigeles (methods) of valuation and initial infornoatidata to
determine fair value, as well as the impact ofaierinitial information on valuation at fair value.

IFRS 13 defines fair value as initial price. Aseault of the guidelines in IFRS 13, the Companyragaaluated
its policy on measuring fair value, in particulamncerning initial data such as the risk of not béging its
obligations when assessing fair value. The applinadf IFRS 13 has no significant effect on theutesf the
Company’s measurements of fair value. Supplementisgiosures, where required, are contained irviddal
notes referring to assets and liabilities whose ¥alue have been defined. The hierarchy of falueas as
follows:

v' Level 1: financial instruments valuated directlyllsfing on the active market,

v' Level 2: financial instruments valuated by obsegvangoing market transactions concerning similar
financial instruments,

v' Level 3: financial instruments valuated using definvaluation techniques due to the absence of an
active market.

« Amendments of IFRS 7inancial Instruments: Disclosures: Compensation Kihancial Assets and
Financial Liabilities- which apply to annual periods beginning on t¢erat January 2013,

The amendments introduce additional quantitative gunalitative disclosures concerning transfersggssents
of financial assets, if:

v the financial assets are totally removed from thkafice of the statement of financial position e t
entity remains involved in those assets (e.g. tinooptions or guarantees concerning the assets
transferred),

v the financial assets are not entirely removed ftieenstatement of financial position.

The application of these changes had no effecherinancial position or operating results of tren@any.

- Amendments resulting from an IFRS review (issuedMiay 2012) — which apply for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 concerning 18Sand IAS 32 - the application of those amendment
had no effect on the financial position or opemgtiasults of the Company, or on the scope of in&tiom
presented in the Company’s financial statements.

« Amendments to IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial Repiog Standards: Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for Fitishe Adopters— which apply to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012 — in the EU, atile at the latest to annual periods beginningroafter
1 January 2013, and Amendments to IFR%iibkt-time Adoption of International Financial Regiog
Standards: Government Loarsapplicable at the latest to annual periods begmon or after 1 January
2013,

Amendments to IFRS 1 did not concern the Company.

« IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Swfatine — which apply for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

The interpretation does not apply to the Company.
The Company decided against early adoption of dhgrestandard, interpretation or amendment alrésslyed
but not yet effective, except for:

- Disclosure of recoverable amount for non-finan@asets - Amendment of IAS 36 Impairment of assets
Those amendments removed the unintended conseguehdERS 13 concerning disclosures required under
IAS 36. Moreover, those changes require disclosiineecoverable value or cash-generating units (QGtls
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which impairment was recognised or reversed in \&ergiperiod. Those changes apply to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, and can Ipdeapearlier provided that IFRS 13 has been agplighe
Company has applied those amendments to IAS 3Beiset financial statements in reference to disobssof
impairment of non-financial assets, in Note 18.

9. New standards and interpretations already publishedut not yet in
force

The following standards and interpretations havenbiesued by the International Accounting Stand&maisrd
and the International Financial Reporting Standdrdsrpretations Committee but have not yet entental
force:

« The first phase of standard IFRS Efancial Instruments: Classification and Valuatias amended - its
entry into force was rejected by the Board for IRR#hout a deadline for approval being given,

- IFRS 10Consolidated Financial Statementsvhich apply to annual periods beginning on a¢eral January
2013 - in the EU, applicable at the latest to ahmpexiods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The
Company decided to apply IFRS for financial yeagibning on or after 1 January 2014,

« IFRS 11Joint Arrangements which apply to annual periods beginning on deral January 2013 - in the
EU, applicable at the latest to annual periodsriveégg on or after 1 January 2014. The Company @ecid
apply IFRS for financial years beginning on or aftelanuary 2014,

« IFRS 12Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitieswhich apply to annual periods beginning on derl
January 2013 - in the EU, applicable at the latesinnual periods beginning on or after 1 Januad42The
Company decided to apply IFRS for financial yeargibning on or after 1 January 2014.

« Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS Tkansition Guidance- which apply to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 - in the Eppliaable at the latest to annual periods beginmingr
after 1 January 2014,

« |AS 27 Separate Financial Statementa/hich apply to annual periods beginning on ¢eraf January 2013 -
in the EU, applicable at the latest to annual gkribeginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Compan
decided to apply IFRS for financial years beginrmgor after 1 January 2014,

« |AS 28Investments in Associates and Joint Ventunghich apply to annual periods beginning on derat
January 2013 - in the EU, applicable at the latesinnual periods beginning on or after 1 Janu@i42The
Company decided to apply the amendments of IFR8rfancial years beginning on or after 1 January20

- Amendments of IAS 3ZFinancial Instruments: Presentation: Compensatioin Fdhancial Assets and
Financial Liabilities- which apply to annual periods beginning on ¢eraf January 2014.

«  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IASr¥éstment Entities (published on 31 October 2012) - which
applies for annual periods beginning on 1 Janu@fy2

« IFRIC 21Levies- which applies for annual periods beginning orafter 1 January 2014 - not approved by
the EU by the date of approval of these finandetesnents.

- Amendments to IAS 3Renewal of derivatives and continuation of accountif collateral(published on 27
June 2013) — which apply to financial years begigron or after 1 January 2014.

«  Amendments of IAS 1Employee Benefit§published on 21 November 2013) - which apply dmnual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 - notraped by the EU by the date of approval of thesarftial
statements.

- Amendments resulting from an IFRS review 2010-20ddme of the amendments apply for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2014, and some fondsations taking place on or after 1 July 2014 t no
approved by the EU before the date of approvahese financial statements.

Amendments resulting from an IFRS review 2011-200Bich apply for financial years beginning on or
after 1 July 2014 - not approved by the EU befbeedate of approval of these financial statements.

« IFRS 14Regulatory deferral accountswhich applies for annual periods beginning orafier 1 January
2016 - not approved by the EU by the date of apgrof/these financial statements.
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The Management Board is currently evaluating thtemttal effect of introducing the above standardd a
interpretations on the accounting policies apptigdhe Company.

10. Change in presentation and conversion of comparateszdata

In connection with the fact that the fundamentaletyf activity conducted by the Company is holdangvity,
the Company decided to amend the presentationcofiie and costs in the statement of comprehensigaria
and in the statement of cash flow for the year drigle December 2013, and converted the comparatite d
presented in the financial statements for the pealed 31 December 2012. The conversion involvedgihg
the existing presentation of income and financiasts (in that part concerning obtaining financiray f
subsidiaries) as operating income and operatingscosspectively. Those changes concern the stateaie
comprehensive income and the statement of cash Assummary of these is presented below.

Statement of comprehensive income

Year ended Change in Year ended
31 December : 31 December
2012 presentation 2012
(approved) (restated)
Continued activities
Revenues from core operating activities - 6,467 6,467
Own costs from core operating activities - (3,858) (3,858)
Depreciation and amortisation 9) - 9)
Wages and salaries (1,269) - (1,269)
Other costs by type (1,452) - (1,452)
Other operating income 23 - 23
Other operating expenses (117) - (117)
Profit/ (loss) on operating activities (2,824) 2,609 (215)
Financial income 13,661 (6,459) 7,202
Financial costs (3,850) 3,850 -
Profit/ (loss) on financial activities 9,811 (2,609) 7,202
Profit before taxation 6,987 - 6,987
Current income tax - - -
Deferred tax - - -
Total income tax - - -
Net profit on continuing operations 6,987 - 6,987
Net profit 6,987 - 6,987
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 6,987 - 6,987
Statement of cash flow
Year ended Year ended
31 December Change in 31 December
2012 presentation 2012
(approved) (restated)
Gross profit 6,987 - 6,987
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed and intblgassets 9 - 9
Interest and commission costs 3,458 392 3,850
Exchange rate differences 8 - 8
Change in the balance of assets and liabilitiese® to operating
activities:
— Trade and other receivables 809 - 809
— Trade and other liabilities 117 - 117
— Accruals (32) - (32)
Interest income (6,870) - (6,870)
Commission on the issuance of commercial papers 392 (392) -
Other adjustments 223 - 223
Adjustments of total gross profit 5,101 - 5,101

Other cash flows on operating activities
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Loans granted - (90,315) (90,315)
Interest received - 320 320
Other - 95 95
Other cash flows on operating activities - (89,900) (89,900)
Net cash flow from operating activities 5,101 (89,900) (84,799)
Acquisition of subsidiary — deferred payment (2,136) - (2,136)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment anagiliée assets (8) - 8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equiprued intangible
assets 9 - 9
Loans granted (90,315) 90,315 -
Interest received 320 (320) -
Other 95 (95) -
Net cash flow from investing activities (91,035) 89,900 (1,135)
Loans repaid (7,010) - (7,010)
Interest paid on loans obtained (523) - (523)
Issue of commercial papers 20,000 - 20,000
Repayment of commercial papers issued (71,500) - (71,500)
Interest paid on commercial papers issued (1,730) - (1,730)
Expenditures related to share capital increase (3,964) - (3,964)
Proceeds from share issuance 281,750 - 281,750
Other (297) - (297)
Net cash flow from financing activities 216,726 - 216,726
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 130,792 - 130,792
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of thear 3,244 - 3,244
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 134,036 - 134,036

Apart from the above changes, the Company madegelsaim the names of selected items presented in the
financial statements and the statement of chamgeguity:

Statement of financial position

| Was: | Is:
Assets Assets
Other financial assets (non-current) Non-current financial assets
Trade and other receivables (PLN 138,004,000) Loans granted (PLN 137,995,000)
Trade and other receivables (PLN 9,000)
Liabilities Liabilities
Share premium Supplementary capital
Other financial liabilities Liabilities from issue of commercial papers

Statement of changes in equity
| Was: | | Is: |
Share premium Supplementary capital

The changes in presentation described above didaffiett the result of the Company as presentechén t
financial statements for the year ended 31 Dece@b&2.

In connection with the division of the item “Traded other receivables” into the positions “Loarsnged” and
“Trade and other receivables”, changes were alstenta the comparative data as at 31 December 2012.
effect of those changes on the balance sheetladaatuary 2012 was as follows:

Approved statements as at 31 December 2011 Restdta:

Trade and othe 42,197 | Loans granted 41,276
receivable

Trade and other receivables

[}
N
[y
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11. Significant accounting principles

11.1. Translations of items expressed in a foreign currezy

Transactions expressed in currencies other thashPrbtys are converted to zlotys using the exgkamate in
effect on the day a given transaction is concluded.

As at the balance sheet date, monetary assetsadmidiés expressed in currencies other than Ratistys are
converted to zlotys using the relevant average axgé rate announced by the National Bank of Padenatlin
effect at the end of the reporting period. Excharage differences arising from conversion are disetl as
appropriate (depending on their nature) under firrincome (costs) or income/costs of operatirtiyaies or,
where determined by the accounting policies, threycapitalised in the value of assets. Non-monetasgts and
liabilities recognised according to their histoticast in a foreign currency are shown at the hisaéb exchange
rate on the transaction date. Non-monetary asseétfiabilities recognised at fair value in a foreigurrency are
based on the rate applicable on the date of fhdirevaneasurement.

The following exchange rates were accepted fopthipose of balance sheet measurements:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
GBP 4.,9828 5.0119
EUR 4,1472 4.0882

11.2. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are presented at thaichase price/manufacturing cost less accunuilate
depreciation and impairment losses. The initialugabf fixed assets includes their purchase prices gl
expenses directly associated with purchase, adaptahd commissioning of such assets. Costs aldada
expenses incurred to replace the components of imaghand devices at the time they are incurredhéir
recognition criteria are satisfied. Costs incurafidr the date on which a fixed asset is handed fovaise, such
as maintenance and repair costs, encumber prdfiserat the time they are incurred.

When purchased, fixed assets are divided into comps being valuable items to which separate ecamom
lives might be attributed. Costs of general reniovetare also component parts.

Depreciation is calculated using the linear metthwdugh the estimated useful life of a given asset.
The depreciation rates applied to tangible assetasfollows:

Type Depreciation rates
Buildings and structures 4.5%-10%
Technical machinery and equipment 6%-30%
Office equipment 20%-25%
Vehicles 14%-20%
Computer systems 6%-30P0
Investments in external tangible assets 20%

The final value, useful life and method of depréoiaof assets are verified annually. A given itefiproperty,
plant and equipment may be removed from the stateofdinancial position after it has been disposédf no
economic benefits are expected from continued dsthai asset. All profits and losses resulting froime
removal of a given asset from the statement ofnfifed position (calculated as the difference betweeay
possible net proceeds from sales and the carryimguat of a given item) are disclosed in the profitoss for
the period in which the removal occurs.

Investments in progress include fixed assets uoolestruction or assembly and are recognised ahpseecprice
or manufacturing cost less impairment write-dowifsany. Tangible assets under construction are not
depreciated until their construction is completad they are commissioned.

11.3. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a separate transadiocreated (if they meet the disclosure criteida
development costs) are initially measured at pusehaice or cost of production, as appropriate. pinehase

15



Midas S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decef(i3
Accounting policies and notes
(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

price for intangible assets purchased in a businesshination equals their fair value as at the ddtsuch
combination. After the initial entry, intangible seés are recognised at their purchase price or cbst
manufacturing less amortisation and impairment eatibwns. Expenditures made for intangible assets
manufactured in house, except capitalised expenseevelopment works, are not capitalised anddiselosed
under expenses of the period in which they areriecu

The Company decides whether the economic life @fnigible assets is limited or unlimited. Intangiblesets
with a limited economic life are amortised duringcls economic life and tested against impairmentngher
there are indications of their impairment. Periadd methods for amortisation of intangible asséiis svlimited
economic life are verified at least as at the ehelagh financial year. Changes in the expectedaroanlife or
expected scheme of economic benefits originatiomfa given asset are presented by modifying asopppte
its amortisation period or method, and are receghés changes of estimates.

Intangible assets having a non-defined useful Bfied those which are not used, are annually sulbjeein
impairment test in reference to particular assett the level of the cash-generating unit.

Useful life is subject to annual verification amnehere necessary, adjusted. Profits and lossedirgsflom the
removal of a given intangible asset from the statetnof financial position are measured accordinght
difference between net proceeds from sales anddairging amount of a given asset, and are disclasebe
profit or loss for the period in which they are @rad from the statement of financial position.

11.4. Leases

Financiat lease agreements which transfer ont@tirapany substantially all risks and benefits frastding the
leased object, are recognised in the statemermanidial position as at the lease starting datheatower of the
following two values: fair value of leased tangitdssets or present value of minimum lease chatgese
charges are allocated between financial expensgsaareduction of the balance of lease liabilitissai way
making it possible to obtain a fixed interest rateliabilities still outstanding. Financial expeas®e recognised
in profit or loss, unless the capitalisation requients are met.

Tangible assets used under financial leases amedafed over the shorter of: the estimated udd&bf the
asset or the lease term.

Lease agreements under which a lessor essentiding the entire risk and all benefits from haidleased
objects are classified as operating leases. Opgrbtase charges and subsequent lease paymenézagaised
as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-lir@sbaver the term of the lease.

Contingent lease charges are recognised as exparthesperiod in which they become due and payable

During the years ended on 31 December 2013 andegkrber 2012, the Company was not a party to lease
agreements.

11.5. Shares in subsidiaries, associates and joint venes
Shares in subsidiaries are carried at purchase,@&adjusted by impairment write-downs.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesséisewthere are any indications of impairment afreh in
subsidiaries. In the event that there are sucltatidins, the Company estimates the recoverable @nudithe
shares in subsidiaries.

Carrying out an impairment test involves deterngnihe value-in-use of the cash-generating unit, reidires
determining the discount rate to be applied in otdealculate the current value of cash flows.

The recoverable amount of the shares in subsidiaoeresponds to the fair value less any expermspsred to
sell the asset or its value in use, whichevergfér.

As at each balance sheet date, the Company verifiether there are any reasons indicating thatg@irment
write-down presented in previous periods againststiares in subsidiaries is no longer necessawmhether it
should be reduced. If there are such reasons, ¢ingp@ny estimates the recoverable amount of theeshan
impairment write-down previously recognised is el only in the event that, since the disclostitth® date
of the last impairment write-down, the estimatetuga applied to define the recoverable amount ofi slnares
actually changed. In such case, the carrying amoiuthie shares is increased up to their recoverileunt.
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11.6. Financial assets

Financial assets are divided into the followingegatries:

e Financial assets held to maturity,

« Financial assets measured at fair value by theiahresult,
* Loans and receivables,

* Available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets held to maturity are financiakesgquoted on an active market other than deriestiinvolving
payments which can be specified or whose matwsigstablished, that the Company intends and haabihity
to keep until then, other than:

- designated at their initial recognition as measuatefdir value through profit or loss,
« those designated as available for sale,
* those meeting the definition of loans and recersbl

Financial assets held to maturity are measuredrditgpto amortised cost using the effective intenege
method. Financial assets held to maturity are fjedlas non-current assets if their maturity ocenose than 12
months after the balance sheet date.

A financial asset measured at fair value by tharfaial result is an asset which meets the followimigditions:
a) itis classified as designated for trading. Finahassets qualify as designated for trading if they
e acquired mainly in order to be sold in a short geiof time,

* part of a portfolio of specific financial instruntsnmanaged together and for which there exists a
likelihood of a profit being seen in a short peraddime,

» derivative instruments, except for derivative instents which are an element of hedge accounting and
financial guarantee agreements,

b) was qualified for this category in accordance WKB 39 at its initial recognition.

Financial assets recognised at fair value throbghfinancial result are disclosed at their fairueataking into
account their market value as of the balance staetwithout considering any selling expenses. Gésiin the
value of such financial instruments are recognieetie statement of comprehensive income as fishhwome
(positive net changes in fair value) or expensegdtive net changes in fair value). If a contracbrporates one
or more embedded derivatives, the entire contract lte classified under the category of financiaets
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Tdogs not apply to cases where the embedded deeiddes
not significantly affect cash flows under the caotror where it is obvious without or just aftebréef analysis
that if a similar hybrid instrument was first cathsied, then a separation of the embedded derivategd be
prohibited. At their initial recognition, financialssets may be classified as measured at fair ttadoegh profit
or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) suatiassification eliminates or significantly reducése
inconsistency in the recognition or measurementq@acting mismatch); or (ii) the assets are a platgroup of
financial assets which are managed and evaluatesl fair value basis in accordance with a documerisid
management strategy; or (iii) financial assets lipomate embedded derivatives that should be segharat
accounted for.

Loans and receivables are financial assets nobdist under derivative instruments having paymesiish are
defined or possible to define, and which are rgted on an active market. They are presented undegnt
assets provided that their maturity does not exd@echonths from the balance sheet date. Loansex@ivables
with a maturity date exceeding 12 months from thlatce sheet date are classified as non-curregtisass

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-denxafinancial assets that are classified as avigilfdr-sale or
not belonging to any of the previously mentioneg¢hcategories of assets. Financial assets availabtale are
disclosed at fair value, increased by those traisacosts which may be directly assigned to thepuasition or
issue of the financial asset. In the event thag Hre not listed on any active stock exchange ntaké it is not
possible to reliably determine their fair value ddh®n alternative methods, financial assets aJailfaip sale are
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stated at their purchase price adjusted by impaitmeite-down, if any. Positive and negative diffaces
between the fair value of assets available for &lnere is a market price determined on an actegulated
market or whose fair value may be reliably detead)nand their purchase price, less any deferregsfaare
presented under comprehensive income. Any impairmetated decrease in the value of assets avaitabkale
is reported as financial expenses.

The acquisition and sale of financial assets isgaised as at the day of the transaction. At time tf initial
recognition, a financial asset is measured atwlite, plus, in the case of assets not classieti@asured at fair
value through profit or loss, increased by trarisaatosts that can be directly attributed to thguésition.

A financial asset is removed from the statemenfirancial position if the Company loses control otee
contractual rights comprising a given financialtinment; this usually takes place in the case eéla of an
instrument or when all cash flows assigned to amgimstrument are transferred to an independemt garty.

11.7. Impairment of financial assets

As at each balance sheet date the Company vewifiesher there are any objective reasons indicdtngn
impairment of a financial asset or a group of fitiahassets.

11.7.1 Assets recognised at amortised cost

In the event that there are objective reasons dtidig that an impairment loss on loans and recéigattated at
their capitalised cost is actually incurred, thbe amount of a resulting impairment write-down dsjuthe
difference between the balance sheet value of angimmancial asset and the present value of esiinftture
cash flows (excluding future losses on non-collBetreceivables which are not yet incurred), disted at a
respective original effective interest rate (irderest rate determined at the initial recognittbsuch asset). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced througaluetion write-downs. The amount of the loss iogeised in
profit or loss.

First, the Company verifies whether there are abjedive reasons indicating an impairment of indial
financial assets which are significant on a staodebasis, as well as reasons for impairmentnafftial assets
which are insignificant on a stand-alone basistha event that such verification proves that thare no
objective reasons for impairment of any individyaixamined financial asset regardless of whethds it
significant or not, the Company incorporates susdets in the group of financial assets with a singtedit risk
description and tests them jointly against impaimtnéssets which are individually impairment-testetti for
which an impairment write-down is recognised orvdrich it is decided that the hitherto existing teftlown is
not going to be adjusted, are not taken into camaitbn for the purposes of a joint impairment telsthe
pertinent asset group.

In the event that, in the subsequent period, araiment write-down decreases and such decreaset imégh
objectively associated with an event taking plaiter aecognising such impairment write-down, thétevdown
previously disclosed is reversed. A later reveadahe impairment write-down is presented in profitloss to
the extent to which as of its reversal date theyoag amount of a respective asset is not highan ths
amortised cost.

11.7.2 Financial assets recognised at cost

In the event that there are any objective reasudisating that an unlisted equity instrument noameed at fair
value because its fair value is impossible to defin a derivative which is associated and has teelttted by
delivery of such unlisted equity instrument, migbtimpaired, the amount of a required impairmeriteadown

is determined as the difference between the cayrgmount of a given financial asset and the presane of

estimated future cash flows discounted at the atimearket return rate for similar financial assets.
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11.7.3 Financial assets available for sale

In the event that there are objective reasons atidig that a financial asset available for salehhlze impaired,
the amount constituting the difference between hmase price of such asset (less any principal payrand
amortisation / depreciation) and its current faaue, less any impairment write-down against susbeta
recognised in profit or loss, is derecognised frequity and transferred to profit or loss. A revérea
impairment write-downs recognised against equisgrirments classified as available for sale is odiet carried
out in profit or loss. If, in any subsequent perithtk fair value of a debt instrument availabledale increases,
and such growth might be objectively associatedh @it event taking place after recognition of a eetipe
impairment write-down in profit or loss, the amowfisuch reversed write-down is disclosed in profitoss.

11.8. Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives are divided from agreemendsti@ated as derivatives if all of the followingnetitions
are met:

« the economic nature and risk of the embeddedum&int are not strictly related to the economic reaaind
risk of the agreement in which a given instrumsrembedded;

e an autonomous instrument with identical conditioh$mplementation as the embedded instrument would
meet the definition of a derivative;

e a hybrid (complex) instrument is not shown at faitue, but changes in its fair value are not reczag in
profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are shown in a similar maaseautonomous derivatives, which are not recognézed

instruments of security.

The scope within which, in accordance with IAS 3% economic traits and risk proper to an embedded
derivative in a foreign currency are strictly reldto the economic traits and risk proper friacipal agreement
(main contract) also extends to a situation whieeectrrency of a principal agreement is the nowcualency for
purchase and sale contracts of a non-financial @arthe market of a given transaction.

The Company makes an evaluation of whether an edelgederivative is subject to separation at the nmirog
initial recognition.

At the balance sheet date, the Company valuatéteatified embedded derivative at fair value. Chesn fair
value are recognised in the statement of compréleimcome as income or expenses from operatirigiges.

11.9. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are disclosed and shown accotdilge amount initially invoiced, taking accourftany

write-downs for doubtful receivables. Write-downgamnst receivables are estimated only in the eveait
recovery of their full amount is no longer probable

In the event that an influence of the time valuenoiey is essential, the balance of receivabldstisrmined by
discounting forecast future cash flows to the pres@lue at a gross discount rate reflecting currearket
assessments of the time value of money. In thetdéhiaha discounting-based method is applied, aowth in

the balance of receivables resulting from the lagfdame is presented as financial income.

Budget receivables are presented under other edulews; except for receivables from corporate inceaxe
which constitute a separate item in the statemkfimancial position.

11.10.Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits shown in the stateofdintancial position comprise cash at bank andhand,
and short-term deposits having an initial matupigyiod of no more than three months.

The balance of cash and cash equivalents disciast® statement of cash flows is made up of cashcash
equivalents referred to above.
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11.11.Interest-bearing bank loans, loans and debt securéds

At the moment of initial disclosure, all bank loaimans and debt securities are disclosed at &irevreduced
by the costs associated with obtaining the loan.

After their initial recognition, interest-bearingans and debt securities are stated at their diapdacost using
the effective interest rate method. When definimgirt capitalised cost, any expenses associatedobiining
such credit or loan as well as discounts or premiumceived when settling liabilities are taken into
consideration.

Proceeds and costs are disclosed in profit ordb#ise time a liability is removed from the statenef financial
position, and as a result of a settlement usingftfeetive interest rate method.

11.12.Trade and other liabilities

Current trade liabilities are shown in the amoumayment due.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value by firgancial result comprise financial liabilities signated for
trading and financial liabilities initially clasg#d to categories measured at fair value by thanfiral result.
Financial liabilities are classified as designatedtrading if they were acquired to be sold in tiesar future.
Derivatives, including separated embedded instrisneare also classified as held for trading untesy are

considered effective hedges. At their initial reaitign, financial liabilities may be classified aeasured at fair
value through profit or loss if the following cnita are met: (i) such classification eliminatessanificantly

reduces the inconsistency if loss or profit measar® and recognition are subject to different rutes(ii) the

liabilities are a part of a group of financial likees which are managed and evaluated on a falner basis in
accordance with a documented risk management gyrate (iii) financial liabilities incorporate embded

derivatives that should be separately accounted Asrat 31 December 2013 no financial liabilitiegres
classified as measured at fair value through firrdmesult (as at 31 December 2012: zero).

Financial liabilities measured at fair value by fiv@ncial result are measured at fair value, tglkigcount of
their market value as at the balance sheet datediegs of the costs of the sale transaction. Gmirgthe fair
value of these instruments are recognised in poofibss as financial expenses or income.

Financial liabilities which are not financial ingtnents recognised at fair value through profitasslare stated
on a capitalised cost basis using the effectiveré@st rate method.

The Company excludes financial liabilities from $tetement of financial position when a liabilitgshexpired -
that is, when an obligation set out in an agreerhaatbeen discharged, cancelled or has expiredplaaement
of the hitherto existing debt instrument by an rimstent with essentially different terms and comais made
between the same parties is recognised by the Gomgs the expiry of the original financial liabfliand a
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarlysignificant modifications to the terms and coiwtis of the
contract regulating an existing financial liabildye recognised by the Company as the expiry obtiggnal and
a recognition of a new financial liability. Any fifences in respective carrying amounts arisingsoch
replacements are reported in profit or loss.

Other non-financial liabilities comprise in partiguliabilities towards the tax office from VAT, driabilities
from advances received which will be settled byphavision of goods, services or fixed assets. Olibbilities
are disclosed in the amount of payment due.

11.13.Provisions

Provisions are created whenever the Company hablagation (legal or customarily expected) restinom
past events and when it is probable that the padace of such obligation will require expending remoic
benefits and provided that it is possible to rdjiastimate the amount of such obligation. In ther# that the
Company expects that costs covered by a provigiergaing to be recovered, e.g. under an insuraoo&act,
such recovery is disclosed as a separate assenlyuivhen it is actually certain that such recovisrgoing to
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take place. Costs relating to the given provisiomshown in the statement of comprehensive incdess, any
recoveries.

In the event that an influence of the time valuenohey is essential, the balance of a provisiatetermined by
discounting forecast future cash flows to the pmesalue using a discount rate reflecting currerarkat
assessments of the time value of money and riksy, associated with a respective obligationthie event
that a discounting-based method is applied, anwiron the balance of a provision resulting fronapse of
time is presented as financial expenses.

11.14.Revenue

Revenues are recorded in the extent to which itkedy that the Company will obtain economic betefi
associated with the transaction and the amourgwednue can be measured reliably. Revenues arenisedaat
fair value of the payment received or payable, lgg value added tax (VAT) and discounts. When nding
revenues, the criteria referred to below apply ak. w

11.14.1 Sales of goods and products

Revenues are recognised when significant risksbanefits resulting from holding a title to goodslgroducts
are passed to their buyer and when the amounvehtes can be reliably determined.

11.14.2 Rendering of services

Revenues from sales of services are recogniseleirpériod when the services were delivered basethen
progress of a specific transaction, determinechagdtio of the works actually carried out to ak tservices to
perform.

11.14.3 Interest

Interest revenues are recorded gradually as theyag¢based on the effective interest rate metlodtiuting a
rate discounting future cash flows for an estimaisdful life of financial instruments) in referentethe net
carrying amount of a given financial asset.

11.14.4 Dividends

Dividends are recognised at the time shareholdatélement to dividends is determined.
11.15.Taxes

11.15.1 Current tax

Current tax liabilities and receivables for thereat and previous periods are measured in amouptcted to
be payable to tax authorities (subject to reimbmesg from tax authorities), taking into account tates and
legislation that were lawfully or actually in fores at the balance sheet date.

11.15.2 Deferred tax

For financial reporting purposes, deferred tax atcated using the method of balance sheet ltadsliin
reference to temporary differences existing ashat llalance sheet date between tax values of aasdts
liabilities and their carrying amount recognisedha financial statements.

A provision against deferred tax is presented liatien to all positive temporary differences

e except situations when a provision against defalagdesults from the initial recognition of goodivair the
initial recognition of an asset or liability follamg a non-merger transaction which at the very mutroéits
execution does not affect either the gross findmesult or the taxable income or tax loss and
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« in the case of additional temporary differencesltasy from investments in subsidiaries or assesand
ownership shares in joint ventures - except foit@ason where the deadlines for reversing temporar
differences are subject to investor control and retieis likely that, in the foreseeable futurempeorary
differences will not be reversed.

Deferred tax assets are presented in referenck negative temporary differences as well as unuseccredit
and unused tax losses carried forward in amountghith it is probable that a taxable income allogvthe use
of the foregoing differences, assets and lossgsiig to be produced

e except for a situation where the deferred tax assaterns negative temporary differences arising r@sult
of temporary disclosure of an asset or liabilitynfr a transaction not constituting a merger and hyhat the
time of conclusion, has no effect on the grossriia result, taxable income or tax loss, and

« in the case of negative temporary differences fiomestments in subsidiaries or associates and sliare
joint ventures, a deferred tax asset is disclosetthé statement of financial position only in thecant in
which it is likely in the foreseeable future thhtetabove temporary differences will be reversed taatl
taxable income will be achieved, which will makedtssible to offset the negative temporary diffeem

The carrying amount of every deferred tax assetiiied as at each balance sheet date and is gfgdeduced
to the extent in which it is no longer probabletthataxable profit sufficient to partly or entirelyse such
deferred income tax asset is going to be produgadindisclosed asset from deferred income tax ligesti to
revaluation at each balance sheet date and isod&tlin the amount reflecting the likelihood of iaeng

taxable income in the future which will make it pitiBe to recover that asset.

Deferred income tax assets and provisions aga@ietred tax are stated using tax rates which grectzd to be
in force when a given asset is going to be useal giwen provision is going to be released, accgmma basis
tax rates (and tax regulations) effective as abtilance sheet date or those whose effective forte future is
certain as at the balance sheet date.

Income tax on items recognised outside profit aslas recognised outside profit or loss: under rothe
comprehensive income for items included in othemprehensive income or directly in equity for items
recognised directly in equity.

The Company sets off deferred income tax assetsivisions against deferred income tax in thenetleat it
holds an enforceable legal title to set off curtamtreceivables against liabilities and respeatiegerred income
tax refers to the same taxpayer and the same thgréties, and only then.

11.15.3 Value added tax

Revenues, expenses, assets, equity and liabgiteepresented less the value of respective valdedathxes,
except:

* when the VAT paid upon a purchase of assets oicgsrcannot be recovered from the tax authorithes
it is disclosed as appropriate as part of the @selprice of the asset or as part of the cost @eah,

* receivables and liabilities which are discloseduding value added tax amounts.

Net value added tax amounts recoverable from omlglayto tax authorities are stated in the stateroént
financial position under receivables or liabilities

11.16.Net earnings (loss) per share

The net earnings (loss) per share for each peredaculated by dividing the net earnings (loss)d given
period by the weighted average number of sharagjinen reporting period.

The Company does not disclose diluted earningsipare since there are no dilutive potential ordirsnares.
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12. Business segments

The activities conducted by the Company are treasea single operating segment (holding activity).

The Management Board treats the entire group asgéesoperating segment and evaluates the finanegallts
of the Group based on the consolidated financaéstents.

13. Revenues and costs

13.1. Revenues from core operating activities

Year ended Year ended
31 December 201z 31 December 2012
(restated)
Income from interest on loans granted to relatdiies 22,14 6,413
Positive exchange rate differences -
Other 54
Total 22,154 6,467

During the 12-month period ended 31 December 2@&\@&nues from core operating activities increaseB N
15,687,000 in comparison with the correspondingopeof the previous year. This change results fram
increase in the value of loans granted to relatgitiess. Details on loans granted are presenté¢bie 19.1.

13.2. Own costs from core operating activities

Year ended Year ended
31 December 201z 31 December 2012
(restated)
Interest on bonds 19,97 -
Interest on loans received from related entities 122
Interest on commercial papers issued to relatatiesnt 3 1,876
Interest on commercial papers issued to otheriestit 1,460
Interest on bank credit received g -
Commission on bank credit received 8¢
Update of the value of embedded derivative 64 -
Negative exchange rate differences 8
Other costs £ 392
Total 22,657 3,858

During the 12-month period ended 31 December 2@b3ts of core operating activities increased by PLN
18,799,000 in comparison with the correspondingogenf the previous year. This change results fraxm
increase in the value of costs related to the resei@f debt securities. Details on the issuanagebt securities

is presented in Note 22.

13.3. Wages and salaries

Year ended Year ended
31 December 201z 31 December 2012
Management Board 1,2¢ 1,077
Supervisory Board ¢ 14
Others 4z 178
Total 1,796 1,269

The amount of PLN 1,077,000 (year ended 31 Decer2b&P) does not include the premium paid out to the
Company’s Management Board, settled as a decredbe value of supplementary capital.

13.4. Other costs by type

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
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Materials and energy used 2
External services 1,8: 1,270
Taxes and charges [ 2
Social insurance and other benefits 1( 92
Other costs £ 86
Total 2,043 1,452

The item “External services” (year ended 31 Decenad3) contains the costs of securing debt (imaeat
credit) by Inwestycje Polskie Sp. z 0.0., in theoant of PLN 668,000 (details in Note 26.2).

13.5. Financial income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
(restated)
Income from bank interest 4,4¢ 6,738
Income from loans granted to non-related entities 456
Positive exchange rate differences 8
Total 4,450 7,202

During the 12-month period ended 31 December 2@ibancial income decreased by PLN 2,752,000 in
comparison with the corresponding period of theviotes year. That change resulted from the lowenevaif
funds in deposits and changes in bank depositsteates.

14. Income tax

14.1. Arrangement on the effective tax rate

The arrangement on income tax on the gross prefiirb tax according to the statutory tax rate, \witbome tax
charged at the effective tax rate of the CompamytHe years ended on 31 December 2013 and 31 Decemb
2012, is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 201z 31 December 2012
Profit (loss) before tax ¢ 6,987
Tax based on the applicable tax rate - 19% (X (1,328)
Costs not constituting costs of obtaining income (¢ (20)
Undisclosed tax loss and other undisclosed temypalifferences ] 1,348

Income tax for the financial year -

Income tax in the statement of comprehensive income -

14.2. Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax results from the following iem
Statement of comprehensive

income for the year ended
31 Decembet 31 Decembet 31 Decembet 31 December

Statement of financial position

2013 2012 2013 2012
Deferred income tax provision
Interest accrued but not received on loans granted 5,472 1,366 (4,106) (1,219)
Interest accrued but not received on bank deposits 31 65 34 (65)
Positive exchange rate differences - - - 15
Other - - - 158
Deferred income tax provision 5,503 1,431 (4,072) (1,111)
Deferred income tax assets
Unused holiday leave provision 15 9 6 3
Interest on liabilities accrued but not paid 3,796 693 3,103 229
Loss which can be deducted from future taxablerireo 3,214 2,404 810 (471)
Other 143 9 134 2
Deferred income tax assets 7,168 3,115 4,053 (237)
The value of tax losses and temporary differences/hich
deferred tax was not disclosed due to the antietbat (1,665) (1,684) 19 1,348
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impossibility of realising the assets in deferrax from
future tax results of the Company

Deferred tax liabilities - -

Net assets/provision for deferred income tax, attvh - -

Deferred income tax assets - continuing operations - -
Provision for deferred income tax - continuing @iems - -

15. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividirgnet earnings for a given period attributabléatders of
ordinary shares of the Company by the weightedsme=number of ordinary shares outstanding in tegbg.

Presented below are data on the earnings and sle@dsn calculating the basic earnings per share:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Net profit (loss) on continuing operations 3 6,987
Net profit (loss) 85 6,987
Weighted average number of ordinary shares isssed in
calculating the basic earnings (loss) per share 1,479,665,3¢€ 1,127,129,125
Net profit (loss) on continuing operations per shar 0.00(¢ 0.0062

In the period between the balance sheet date @&day on which these financial statements wereagpeg} no
other transactions were made concerning existingptential ordinary shares.

16. Property, plant and equipment

Year ended on 31 December 2013

Other
technical Technical
equipment equipment and
and machinery - Investments
machinery infrastructure Vehicles in progress Total
Gross value of fixed assets as at 1 January 2013 81 27 - - 108
Increases resulting from purchase of assets 9 - 131 - 140
Gross value of fixed assets as at 31 December 2013 90 27 131 - 248
Cancellation as at 1 January 2013 (60) (27) - - (87)
Depreciation and amortisation (13) - (16) - (29)
Cancellation as at 31 December 2013 (73) (27) (16) - (116)
Net value of fixed assets as at 1 January 2013 21 - - - 21
Net value of fixed assets as at 31 December 2013 17 - 115 - 132
Year ended on 31 December 2012
Other
technical Technical
equipment equipment and
and machinery - Investments
machinery infrastructure Vehicles in progress Total
Gross value of fixed assets as at 1 January 2012 73 27 - - 100
Increases resulting from purchase of assets 8 - - - 8
Gross value of fixed assets as at 31 December 2012 81 27 - - 108
Cancellation as at 1 January 2012 (52) (26) - - (78)
Depreciation and amortisation (8) (1) - - 9)
Cancellation as at 31 December 2012 (60) (27) - - (87)
Net value of fixed assets as at 1 January 2012 21 1 - - 22
Net balance of fixed assets as at 31 December 2012 21 - - - 21
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17. Intangible assets

Year ended on 31 December 2013

Computer software

and licences Other Total
Gross balance of intangible assets as at 1 Janua2913 18 20 38
Increases resulting from purchase of assets - 1
Gross value of intangible assets as at 31 Decem{2813 19 20 39
Cancellation as at 1 January 2013 (18) (20) (38)
Depreciation and amortisation [ - 1)
Cancellation as at 31 December 2013 (19) (20) (39)
Net value of intangible assets as at 1 January 2013 - -
Net value of intangible assets as at 31 DecembE3 20
Year ended on 31 December 2012

Computer software

and licences Other Total
Gross balance of intangible assets as at 1 Janua2912 18 20 38
Increases resulting from purchase of assets - -
Gross value of intangible assets as at 31 Decem{2&12 18 20 38
Cancellation as at 1 January 2012 (18) (20) (38)
Depreciation and amortisation - -
Cancellation as at 31 December 2012 (18) (20) (38)

Net value of intangible assets as at 1 January 2012
Net value of intangible assets as at 31 DecembE2 20

18. Non-current financial assets

31 December 201: 31 December 2012

Shares, of which:

- CenterNet S.A. 238,9¢ 238,989
- Mobyland Sp. z 0.0. 178,71 178,770
- Conpidon Ltd. 548,44 548,444
Loans granted (including interest) 259,54 -
Embedded derivatives - option of early repurchdssods 47,2 -
Total 1,272,981 966,203

Loans granted
Details concerning long-term loans granted in 28f8described in Note 19 hereto.

Embedded derivative

At the moment of initial recognition of a liabilitfom bonds, the Company estimated whether theumsnt
recognised contains components meeting the defindf an embedded derivative.

During the analysis, an embedded derivative wastifiled (an option of early repurchase of bondshe
Company evaluated the parameters of that optionoitkde degree of connection of the embedded instni
with the principal agreement. In accordance with dstimate, the embedded derivative identified snéet
requirements of IAS 39 for being separate from ghacipal agreement, and therefore was recogniseitie
statement of financial position as a separate dgviv instrument under long-term financial assets.

The value of that instrument, recognised at the ardrof initial disclosure, was determined as PLN849,000.
As at 31 December 2013, the value of the optionwahsated at PLN 47,232,000 (the difference in &bn of
PLN 647,000 was recognised in operating costs).

Shares

For the needs of perparing the annual financiaéstants, the Company conducted an impairment fedtaves
in subsidiaries by estimating the recoverable valufiose interests and shares.
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The recoverable amount of the shares in subsidiarés estimated as the fair value less any expefiseaking
sales.

As a result of the tests, no impairment write-dowhshares were recognised for subsidiaries. Thelusi of
recoverable amount over the carrying amount ig@efft to cover any expenses of making sales.

Given the type of activity conducted and the fhett tthere is one coherent operating segment, iogir@on of
the Management Board of the Company investmerdalisidiaries constitute a single main cash-gemeyainit

(in the meaning of IAS 36 Impairment of assets)ufma on telecommunications activities and wholedata
transfers based on the LTE and HSPA+ technologidsch are a relatively new solution in Poland and
worldwide. As a result of the above, the impairmist of shares in subsidiaries was conducted ®tasis of
forecast cash flows to be generated jointly bysalbsidiaries, constituting a single cash-generatimg When
developing and approving business plans, the ManageBoard takes into account changes taking mladbe
telecommunications market in Poland as well agvta market research and agreements signed or atgbti
with telecommunications operators.

The Management Board of the Company based the assamptions made in order to determine the usable
value of the cash-generating unit on expectatiaitis iggard to:

- the market value of data transfers,
- the share of subsidiaries of Midas S.A. in trghkspeed data transmission market,
- the rate of growth in demand for rapid data tfarssin Poland.

Values assigned to each of those parameters réfledtest estimates of the Management Board oftimpany

as to current and future needs of clients for detasfer services. In the calculations, account ta#en of
anticipated changes in the scope of the business, @lthough these may be subject to the impact of
unforeseeable technological, political, economitegal changes. Consequently, uncertainty exist #se day
these financial statements were prepared as tchehtte assumptions made will prove true.

The end growth rate accepted is O per cent afeepériod of the forecast, whereas the pre-tax discmte is
11.7 per cent (the after-tax WACC is 10 per certte period covered by the forecast is 2014-2021.

The Management Board of the Company anticipatestiieaaverage growth rate in use of data transfetise
period of the forecast, i.e. 2014-2021, will be rapp 28 per cent yearly, with the highest growthtia coming
year. Prices for wholesale consumers, however,dsip significantly over the next 5 years. The Campwiill

mainly incur operating costs relating to maintagnand using its telecommunications network, andharges
for holding frequencies and radio bands.

Presented below are proceedings with regard toviegefrequencies held by subsidiaries of Midas.

Proceedings concerning frequency reservations éotétNet and Mobyland

In the proceedings pending before the Provinciahfdstrative Court in Warsaw (the “PACW”) on thesimof

a complaint of Polkomtel against the decisionshef President of the OEC of 30 November 2007, undhéch

the President of the OEC made a reservation ofuéecjes for CenterNet and Mobyland and refused such
reservations to PTC and Polkomtel (“Reservationifdec 1”) and the decision of 23 April 2009, uphialgl
Reservation Decision 1 after re-examining the ddBeservation Decision 2”), on 19 November 2012 the
PACW issued a judgement under which, on the mefithe case, it dismissed the complaint broughPBYC

and cancelled the proceeding initiated by the cainplof Polkomtel (in connection with the withdraved the
complaint by a procedural submission made befarénéaring).

In the grounds of the ruling dismissing PTC'’s coanp, the PACW emphasised in particular that thengry
argument of that complaint concerning a breactubttantive law due to a failure to examine in thgervation
proceedings the prerequisites referred to in Agticl4 par. 3 of the Telecommunications Law is uifjad, as
the prerequisites set forth in the above regulagi@nsubject to examination by the President ofQE€ at the
stage of earlier, separate tender proceedingstrargdthere is no need to re-establish them in élservation
proceedings. The PACW found the other points ofaheve complaint, referring to procedural irregiiles, to
be groundless or irrelevant to the direction ofrémolution adopted by the President of the OECrE®t Report
No. 53/2012).
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In the Issuer’'s opinion, the PACW judgement in ficac perpetuates the situation of the legally difec
provision to CenterNet and Mobyland of the abitiblyuse the frequency in the range of 1800 MHz. &tuee,
those companies may fully operate the frequenciestgd to them under the decision of the Presidétie
OEC, and thus continue to carry out the strategthefGroup. The aforementioned judgement of the WAE
not final. Both the President of the OEC and theigipants of the proceedings could file a cassaappeal
against the PACW'’s judgement with the Supreme Adstiiative Court (SAC) within 30 days after recetyitihe
PACW'’s judgement including a written justificatiomhe Issuer’s subsidiaries did not file such a atss
appeal. However, PTC did file a cassation appedlisnourrently awaiting its examination by the SAC.

Proceedings related to the tender concerning fragjes subject to reservation for CenterNet and Nayimy

In the matter concerning a repeal of the decisioth® President of the OEC of 13 June 2011 No. D¥E&P-
5174-9/07(321) and of 23 August 2011 No. DZC-WAR-%D/07(352) invalidating - in the scope concerning
the evaluation of PTC's bid - the tender concernimg reservations of frequencies in the range 17280 MHz
and 1805-1825 MHz, issued in the tender concerriisgrvation of the frequencies granted to Centeexdt
Mobyland (Current Report No. 33/2012), the compaumieOctober 2012 received a written justificatiornthe
judgement of the PACW of 6 July 2012. In a writfestification of the judgement, the PACW sustairibd
theses presented in the oral justification andedtdbat the President of the OEC was bound by tiwece
expressed by the Supreme Administrative Courtdrruting of 3 February 2011, file ref. Il GSK 88/linder
which the President of the OEC should have invédididghe tender in its entirety. Furthermore, indipéion of
the PACW, the functional interpretation applied twe President of the OEC with respect to the samipe
invalidation of the tender is not a decisive intetption in shaping administrative decisions conicey the
Tender, and a literal interpretation compliant wiie provisions of the Telecommunication Law ofJléy 2004
should be applied first. Further, the PACW stateat,twhile resolving the above issue, it did noalgse the
motivations and correctness of actions of the Heggiof the OEC when issuing the First and Secoacidibn

of the President of the OEC. On 8 November 2012hWsmd and CenterNet filed cassation appeals ag#ias
judgement of the PACW of 6 July 2012. Currentlyn@eNet and Mobyland are awaiting processing of the
cassation appeal by the SAC. The date of reviettiagassation appeals is unknown.

In connection with the above decisions of 13 Juf&l12and 23 August 2011, the President of the OEC
conducted another tender in the scope coveringsisent of the bid placed by PTC and determinedetised
result of the tender in the form of a new list asg®g each bid. The bids placed by CenterNet wiaieed on the
list under items 1 and 2. On 27 October 2011, Ghiatefiled a motion to obtain frequency reservasiam the
basis of the offer featured as item 2 on the ev@ndist. Upon announcing the new results of #eder, Polska
Telefonia Komdrkowa Centertel sp. z 0.0. and PolBklefonia Cyfrowa S.A. filed motions to invalidatiee
tender. In its decision of 28 November 2012, theskient of the OEC refused to invalidate the tendlbe
above decision was upheld by the decision of tlesiBent of the OEC of 8 November 2013. Subsidiarfdbe
Issuer did not file complaints against the decisibthe President of the OEC of 8 November 201% [Bsuer is
not aware of whether those complaints were subdhiiteother participants in the proceedings.

In view of the above circumstances, the ManagemBaatrd is not able to predict the final resolutiohst
currently feels that none of the above proceedsgigmild have a detrimental effect on the financ@ifon or
the results of Midas S.A.

19. Other assets

19.1. Loans granted

31 December 201 31 December 2012
(restated)
Loans granted (together with interest computed) 445,5¢€ 137,995
Total 445,567 137,995
current 186,02 137,995
Non-current (presented in the statement of findpmaition under
other non-current financial assets (non-current)) 259,5¢

During the 12-month period ended 31 December 2613 Company granted loans with a total value of PLN
291,000,000, of which:
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Details on loans granted are presented are shote itable below:

Amount
Company | of loan | Date loan granted | Date loan repaid Interest rate and other conditions of the loan
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Mobyland| 40,000 | 22 April 2013 bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Aero2 25,000 |7 May 2013 bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
Aero2 23,000 |25 September 201 30 March 2018 cost of servicing the Alior loan plus margin
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Mobyland| 20,000 | 26 September 201] bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
Aero2 18,000 | 19 September 201} 30 March 2018 cost of servicing the Alior loan plus margin
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Mobyland| 17,000 |22 August 2013 | bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Aero2 16,000 |22 July 2013 bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Mobyland | 16,000 |9 September 2013 bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Aero2 15,000 |27 May 2013 bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Aero2 15,000 | 19 June 2013 bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Mobyland| 15,000 | 29 October 2013 | bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
WIBOR 1M plus margin, interest accrued in arrears -
WIBOR 1M from the second business day preceding
beginning of the interest period assuming thatyaae
Aero2 14,000 | 27 March 2013 31 December 2014 is 365 days
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Mobyland| 14,000 |5 December 2013 | bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
WIBOR 1M plus margin, interest accrued in arrears -
WIBOR 1M from the second business day preceding
beginning of the interest period assuming thatyaae
Aero2 12,000 | 26 June 2013 31 December 2014 is 365 days
WIBOR 1M plus margin, interest accrued in arrears -
WIBOR 1M from the second business day preceding
beginning of the interest period assuming thatyeze
Aero2 10,000 |23 April 2013 31 December 2014 is 365 days
WIBOR 1M plus margin, interest accrued in arrears -
WIBOR 1M from the second business day preceding
beginning of the interest period assuming thatyeze
Aero2 9,000 22 August 2013 | 31 December 2014 is 365 days
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Aero2 5,000 5 December 2013 | bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013
Aero2 5,000 23 December 2013 30 March 2018 cost of servicing the Alior loan plus margin
to April 2021 (in accordance with | margin plus cost of servicing the debt from zeropmn
Aero2 2,000 22 August 2013 | bond repayment date) bonds issued by MIDAS S.A. on 16 April 2013

All of the above loans are secured by an own inddgpromissory note.
The loans were granted for the purpose of finantiregexpansion and maintenance of the telecommitimmisa
network of the Midas Group, conducted as part efrtbrmal operations of the Midas Group.

On 23 January 2013, CenterNet made an early repayoh@art of the loan granted by the Company odulg

2011 - it repaid principal

in the amount of PLN 540,000.

in the amount of PLN MO0 together with accrued

to Aero2 Sp. z o.0., short-term loans in the amafnPLN 45,000,000 and long-term loans in the
amount of PLN 124,000,000,

to Mobyland Sp. z 0.0., long-term loans in the amaf PLN 122,000,000.

the

the

the

the

interest due

In October 2013, Conpidon made an early repaymépiad of the loan granted by the Company on 2 IApri
2012 — it repaid principal in the amount of EURZIZB.

Trade receivables do not bear interest and ushaihg a 14-day payment period.

29



Midas S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decef(i3
Accounting policies and notes
(in PLN ‘000, except for items otherwise indicated)

19.2. Other assets

31 December 201 31 December 2012
Commission paid on bank credits received 1,04 -
Total 1,040

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at banks generates interest based on vairdlest rates whose amount depends on interest f@at one-
day bank deposits. Short-term deposits are madpeioods ranging from one day to one month, dependin
the Company's current needs for cash and earresttat their respective fixed interest rates.

The balance of cash and cash equivalents disciost statement of cash flow is made up of thiovahg
items:

31 December 201z 31 December 2012
Cash at bank and on hand 37 420
Short-term bank deposits 65,0(C 133,272
Interest accrued on bank deposits 1€ 344
Cash and cash equivalents 65,543 134,036

Notes 20.1 - 20.2 refer to the statement of caslo

20.1. Change in the balance of short-term liabilities

1 Jan 2013 - 1 Jan 2012 -

31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012
Change in the balance of short-term liabilities (25,741 (581,260)
Change in the balance of loans and borrowings (6! 7,411
Change arising from the issue of debt securities 25,8¢ 25,555
Change in the balance of other financial liabititie z 548,411
Total 112 117
20.2. Change in the balance of short-term receivables

1 Jan 2013 - 1 Jan 2012 -

31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012
Change in the balance of short-term receivables (48,01 (95,807)
Change in the balance of receivables from loansanawings 48,0z 96,720
Change in the balance of other financial receivable (95)
Change in the balance of receivables on dispogaiagferty, plant
and equipment (9)
Total 9 809

21. Share capital and supplementary/reserve capital

21.1. Share capital

As at 31 December 2013, and as at the date ofghiibgj this report, the share capital of the Compamgunts
to PLN 147,966,675 (one hundred forty-seven milindme hundred sixty-six thousand six hundred seménée
zZlotys) divided into 1,479,666,750 (one billion fdwndred seventy-nine million six hundred sixtg-fiousand
seven hundred fifty) ordinary bearer shares eadh,ding:
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11,837,334 series A shares,
47,349,336 series B shares,
236,746,680 series C shares,
1,183,733,400 series D shares.

All shares issued were paid in full and registeséti the National Court Register.
The table below shows the history of operationstures issued by the Company:

Value of series/issue Method of covering

Series/issue Type of shares Number of shares ) . Date of registration
at nominal value capital
Series A Bearer 1,000,0¢ 100 Cash 31 Mar 1995
Series A Bearer 32,000,0( 3,200 In-kind 8 Sep 1995
Series A Bearer 1,000,0( 100 In-kind 3 Feb 1996
Series A Bearer 500,0C 50 In-kind 6 May 1996
Series A Bearer 400,0C 40 In-kind 3 Jun 1996
Series A Bearer 100,0C 10 In-kind 5 Jun 1996
Cancellation 1996 - (3,973,81! (397) - 19 Dec 1996
Cancellation 1997 - (255,10¢ (26) - 17 Nov 1997
Cancellation 1998 - (313,03t (31) - 24 Nov 1998
Cancellation 1999 - (401,91 (40) - 18 Nov 1999
Cancellation 2003 - (7,512,98 (752) - 18 Dec 2003
Cancellation 2005 - (10,705,80 (2,070) - 10 Nov 2005
Series B Bearer 47,349,3: 4,734 Issue of shares 17 Jul 2006
Series C Bearer 236,746,6 23,674 Issue of shares 30 Jun 2011
Series D Bearer 1,183,733,4 118,374 Issue of shares 18 Apr 2012
Total 1,479,666,75(

21.1.1 Nominal value of shares

All issued shares have a nominal value of PLN @dd are fully paid up.

21.1.2 Shareholders’ rights

Each ordinary share carries the right to one vbteeaGeneral Meeting of Shareholders. The shdral series

carry equal rights, in particular, with respectlieidend and voting rights.

21.1.3 Shareholders having a significant holding

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Zygmunt Solorzak

share in capital 65.9975% 65.9978%
share in votes 65.9975% 65.9977%
ING OFE

share in capital 5.4066% 5.0273%
share in votes 5.4066% 5.0273%
Other shareholders

share in capital 28.5959% 28.9749%
share in votes 28.5959% 28.9760%

The percentage share for 2012 was calculated ta&kompunt of 5,000 own shares of the Company held
indirectly by Litenite Limited, where, in accordanaevith Article 364 of the Commercial Companies Code

Midas did not exercise voting rights from its owmages. On 8 April 2013, the above 5,000 own shafdke
Company were disposed of by the Company.

21.2. Supplementary capital

In the 12 month period ended on 31 December 20E3etwas a decline in the value of supplementapitala

by PLN 146,000. In 2013, the Company sold 5,00@obwn shares, and the loss on the sale of owresha
encumbered the supplementary capital.
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21.3. Own shares

On 8 April 2013, Midas S.A. sold 5,000 own shareair ordinary session transaction on the reguiaatket of
Gietda Papieréw Warfgiowych S.A. in Warsaw. Information about the abdrensaction was published in
Current Report No. 9/2013.

21.4. Retained earnings and dividend restrictions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Commercial Gones Code, the Company is obliged to create
supplementary capital to cover losses. This cayegbrapital is to be supplied with at least 8 pent of the
profit for the financial year recognised in the Gmamy's accounts until the capital reaches at ls@estthird of
the share capital. The decision to draw from supplgary or reserve capitals is made by the Gehdealing;
however, part of the supplementary capital up te trird of the share capital can be used only tectsses
reported in the financial statements and cannatlbeated for any other purposes.

22. Interest-bearing bank loans, borrowings and issue@apers and bonds

Effective Repayment 31 December 31 December

interest rate % date 2013 2012
Current
Issue of series MID 0611B commercial papers wittominal
value of PLN 20,000,000, bearing interest at the o WIBOR 31 Dec
1M + margin 8.61% 2013 - 22,732
Issue of series MID 0611C commercial papers witlorinal
value of PLN 8,750,000, bearing interest at the ctWIBOR 31 Dec
1M + margin 6.61% 2013 - 3,165
Commission charged (investment credit) 69 -
Total 69 25,897
Non-current
Issues of series A bonds of a nominal value of BBR,772,000, 16 April
discount rate of 14.31% 14.34% 2021 267,543
Investment credit with a nominal value of PLN 15000, 31 March
bearing interest at the rate of WIBOR 1M + margin 7.30% 2018 45,580
Total 313,123

On 28 February 2013, the Company concluded wittorABank Spétka Akcyjna (“Alior Bank”) a loan
agreement for investment credit of PLN 150 milltonfinance the expansion of a network of relayictest by
companies belonging to the Midas Group. Repaymetiieninterest, calculated on the basis of the 1NB®R
rate increased by the bank’s margin, will be madenonthly periods. Up to 31 December 2013, the Gomgp
drew down part of the credit in the amount of PL&Million. The funds from the credit were sent dihgto the
bank account of the Company’s subsidiary Aero2adnordance with the loan agreement concluded batwee
Midas and Aero2 on 13 September 2013. In the sttéemf financial position, the value shown of ligkds
from the credit is based on the effective intemede, taking account of costs incurred in connectigth
obtaining the financing. Details on the above ages are provided in Note 26.2.

On 16 April 2013, the Management Board of the Camgpassigned a total of 583,772 zero-coupon secured
series A bearer bonds issued by the Company, withnginal value of PLN 1,000 per bond (the “Bondghe
total issue price of the Bonds assigned was PLNB®0528.44. The discount rate was set at 14.3tqudr The
Bonds maturity date is 16 April 2021. As at 31 Dmber 2013, in the statement of comprehensive incthme
Company disclosed financial costs related to teaesof bonds (i.e. the discount, update of theevalithe
embedded derivative and other costs) in the amofuRt.N 20,677,000. Outlays related to the bondsassere
PLN 483,000. Details on the issue of the bondsasiged in Note 26.2.

In the 12-month period ended 31 December 2013Ctmpany made an early redemption of debt papers, of
which:
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e on 17 January 2013, the Company redeemed earlypdgpletrs of series MID0611C, held by CenterNet,
for a total value of PLN 3,172,000, including irgst for a total of PLN 922,000.

e on 11 March 2013, the Company redeemed early dalrg series MID0611B, held by Mobyland, for
a total value of PLN 23,062,000, including interfesta total of PLN 3,062,000.

The subsidiaries will apply the proceeds from theyeredemption of the debt papers towards expantlie
telecommunications network of the Midas Group.

23. Trade and other payables

31 December 201: 31 December 2012
Trade liabilities
Liabilities to other entities € 92
Liabilities to related parties 2/ 44
309 136
Other liabilities
Liabilities to related parties 52
Other liabilities 1( 158
106 210
Financial liabilities
Interest and commission liabilities 69 3,647
Proceeds from issue of debt securities (Note 22) 22,250
69 25,897
Total 484 26,243

Terms and conditions of payment of the above fir@tiabilities:

Trade and other liabilities do not bear interest are usually settled in 14-day periods.
Other liabilities do not bear interest and theier@ge maturity is 1 month.

Interest liabilities are normally settled in montpleriods.

24. Investing liabilities

As at 31 December 2013 and as at 31 December B Zompany did not incur any capex liabilitiest thave
not been disclosed in these financial statements.

25. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013 and at 31 December 201239\idd no contingent assets or liabilities.

25.1. Litigation

In the current reporting period, there were no peatings pending in relation to Midas. Proceedireysdmg in
relation to Midas's subsidiaries are describedateNB1.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

25.2. Tax settlements

Tax settlements and other areas of regulated apesa{such as customs or foreign exchange issuad)tm
constitute subjects of controls carried out by adstiative authorities which are authorised to isgdigh
penalties and sanctions. The lack of referencetbéshed legal frameworks in Poland leads to goities and
inconsistencies in the currently effective legisiat Frequent differences of opinions as to legtrpretation of
tax regulations among state authorities as welleiween state authorities and corporations, r@sldirge areas
of uncertainty and conflict. Therefore, the taxkris Poland is significantly higher than is usualhe case in
countries with more developed tax systems.
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Tax settlements might be audited for a period o fyears, starting from the end of the year whepeetive
taxes are actually paid. Following such audits, @mnpany’s previous tax settlements might be irszdaby
additional tax liabilities.

In the opinion of the Company, as at 31 Decembé&B2there was no need to establish provisionsaforisk.

26. Information on related parties

The following table shows totals of transactionthwelated parties for the current and previouarfoial years:

Receivables from
related parties, of
which: trade loans other
2013 445,56 445,56 -
Subsidiaries 2012 138,00 137,99 -
Liabilities towards trade loans issue of commercial
related parties, of papers
which:
2013 7 7 - -
Subsidiaries 2012 25,921 24 - 25,897
Entities controlled by a person (¢ 2013 233 233 - -
members of their family) who
controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over Midas
S.A 2012 20 20 - -
Revenues from
mutual transactions, other operating
of which: revenues interest on loans other
2013 22,15 22,14 b
Subsidiaries 2012 6,47 1] 6,41 54
Entities controlled by a person (¢ 2013 1,42 1,42p
members of their family) who
controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over Midas
S.A 2012 1,57 1,576
Costs of mutual
transactions, of interest on
which: commercial papers interest on loans other
2013 47 33 141
Subsidiaries 2012 2,16 1,87 12 169
Entities controlled by a person (¢ 2013 1,00 1,006
members of their family) who
controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over Midas
S.A. 2012 37 377

26.1. Entity with a significant influence over the Compary

As at 31 December 2013, Litenite Limited held 66 gent of the ordinary shares of Midas (31 Decen2@dr:

66 per cent).

26.2. Significant agreements entered into by Midas

Investment credit from Alior Bank

On 28 February 2013, the Company concluded wittorABank Spétka Akcyjna (“Alior Bank”) a loan
agreement for investment credit of PLN 150 milltonfinance the expansion of a network of relayictet by
companies belonging to the Midas Group. Under tgeeAment, the Company can use the Credit afterimgeet
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specific conditions of use of the Credit, specifiadhe Agreement, but no later than by 31 March®0rhe
Credit will be repaid in 12 quarterly capital ingt&nts in the following amounts: PLN 1.5 millionrfthe first
three instalments; PLN 16.2 million for the nextn8talments, and PLN 15.9 million for the last aistent.
Capital instalments will be paid on the day on whé&ach quarter ends, beginning with 30 June 20153
March 2018. The interest, calculated on the bdsiseolM WIBOR rate increased by the Bank’s margjiitl, be
repaid

in monthly periods. The security for the Credit aspower of attorney to the account of the Companthe
Bank, a contractual mortgage up to PLN 225 millmm the real property of Inwestycje Polskie Sp. a@. o.
situated in Warsaw at ul. Ostrobramska 77 togeftidr an assignment of rights from the all-risksurance
policy on the real property in an amount of notsiéisan PLN 150 million, a suretyship under civivldy
Inwestycje Polskie Sp. z 0.0. granted for a pedabdne year from the date of a legally binding bksament of
the mortgage together with a declaration on subanis® enforcement under the suretyship grantedouihe
amount of the mortgage, a confirmed cession oftsighsulting from lease agreements for the prenusethe
real property concluded by Inwestycje Polskie Sp.@ with tenants up to the amount not greatem aN 15
million, a suretyship under civil law by the guat@s together with the above-mentioned declarations
submission to enforcement from the suretyship gdnip to the amount of PLN 300 million, togethethwthe
above declaration of the Company on submissiomtoreement under the above procedure up to the ahwaju
PLN 300 million. The Management Board of the Compaeported on the conclusion of the Agreement,
including on the conditions for the use and segudf the Credit, in Current Report No. 4/2013. The
Management Board of the Company reported on thidnfieint of specific conditions precedent in Current
Reports No. 23/2013, 26/2013, 31/2013 and 33/20t81 August 2013, the companies Aero2, CenterNet an
Mobyland (the “Guarantors”) concluded with Alior lBdaa guarantee agreement for the joint securityhef
Company’s liabilities from the Investment Creditrdgment in the amount of PLN 150 million, for theation

of the Credit as set forth in the Credit Agreemést, until 31 March 2018. The amount of eachhaf above
joint guarantors was set at PLN 300 million. Themany points out that each of the Guarantors isrdity
which is a 100-per cent subsidiary of the Comparhgreas no ties exist between the Guarantors and Béank

or between the Company and Alior Bank. The Compgauylished information on this event in Current Répo
No. 31/2013. Up to 31 December 2013, the Company ewdr down
part of the credit in the amount of PLN 46 milliohhe funds from the credit were sent directly te trank
account of the Company’s subsidiary Aero2, in agaoce with the loan agreement concluded betweemdMid
and Aero2 on 13 September 2013. In the stateméimafcial position, the value of liabilities frothe credit is
presented after reduction by the costs of the thedirred settled over time.

Establishment of collateral (the “Pledge Agreemgati shares in subsidiaries

On 7 March 2013, in connection with the adoptiom @ésolution of the Management Board of the Commam
the same day on a series A bonds issue (the “Bpnte# Company, Conpidon Limited (“Conpidon”, and
together with the Company the “Pledgors”) and BangT Polskie Towarzystwo Powiernicze S.A. (“Bondstru
PTP”, the “Pledge Administrator”, the “Security Adstrator” - with regard to other security thamesistered
pledge) concluded an agreement to establish ateegispledge on shares and interests and to estadtther
forms of security over the Bonds (the “Pledge Agreat”). The Pledge Agreement provides for: (i) the
establishment of security in the form of an in lelarpromissory note issued by the Company togetligr av
promissory note declaration in favour of the SdguAdministrator, a declaration by the Company on
submission to enforcement, and a pledge within rtiganing of Article 306 of the Civil Code (the “divi
Pledge”) on the Subject of the Pledge defined beiovavour of the Security Administrator, securipgyment

of the promissory note amount under the aforemeatidn blanco promissory note, as a future recédyand

(i) appointing BondTrust PTP as the administratbthe Registered Pledge, within the meaning ofckat4 par.

3 and 4 of the Act on Registered Pledges and thdgel Register, and (iii) establishing a registgledge on the
Subject of the Pledge (the “Registered Pledge”).

In performance of the Agreement, the Company astaddd security for the Bonds in the form of its oimn
blanco promissory note issued and submitted to Barst PTP, together with a promissory note dedlamat
authorising BondTrust PTP to fill in the promissargte to an amount equivalent to 120 per cent efttital
maximum nominal value of the Bonds, i.e. PLN 720,000, and in the form of the aforementioned detian
on submission to enforcement up to the aforemeetia@mount. Both these forms of security are indépenin
character with respect to the Registered Pledgédamtithe Issuer until the satisfaction of all igables secured
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arising from the Bonds issue or the adoption by Bleedholders Meeting of a resolution on abolishihgt
security.

To secure the future receivable for payment ofptfmamissory note amount, the Pledgors establishedirtue of
the Agreement, pledges in favour of BondTrust PMRBlwares in subsidiaries of Midas. A detailed antotithe
pledges is set out in pt. 2.4.1 of the ManagemepioR on the operations of Midas S.A. in 2013.

Detailed information about the terms and conditiohthe Pledge Agreement was published in CurregdR
No. 6/2013.

The issue of series A bonds

On 16 April 2013, the Management Board of the Camgpassigned a total of 583,772 zero-coupon secured
series A bearer bonds issued by the Company, withnginal value of PLN 1,000 per bond (the “Bondghe
Bonds were subscribed by the following entities:

1) Sferia S.A., with its registered office in Wansa 583,481 Bonds,

2) Powszechna Kasa Oszdmcici Bank Polski Spotka Akcyjna, Oddziat — Dom Malder PKO Banku
Polskiego w Warszawie — 291 Bonds.

The total issue price of the Bonds assigned was FQN099,528.44. The discount rate was set at JgeBtent.
The Bonds maturity date is 16 April 2021. As atl¥cember 2013, in the statement of comprehensoarie
the Company disclosed financial costs related éagbue of bonds (i.e. the discount and the cdstedssue) in
the amount of PLN 20,030,000. Outlays related to libnds issue were PLN 483,000. Information ablogit t
issue of bonds was provided in Current Reports ™M2013, 6/2013, 8/2013, 11/2013, 12/2013, 13/2018 a
16/2013.

Loans granted to Aero?

In 2013, as a result of loan agreements (the “Agexes") concluded with Aero 2 Sp. z o.0., the Camgpa
granted Aero2 loans in a total amount of PLN 160,000 of which PLN 124,000,000 constitute long-term
loans, and PLN 45,000,000 short-term loans.

The conditions of the agreements concluded arespted below:

- for the short-term loans: the annual interest ratequal to the WIBOR 1M + margin, the loans sgeured,
and the repayment date falls on 31 December 2014;

- for long-term loans of a total value of PLN 78)Q@00 interest is calculated on the basis of tte cbMidas
obtaining the capital (i.e. on the basis of thecaist rate on the bonds issued on 16 April 2013Vigas),
increased by a margin. The loans are secured hanegpayment date is subject to the maturity dateeobonds
(the above series A bonds);

- for long-term loans of a total value of PLN 48)Q@00 the interest is calculated on the basis efcist of
Midas obtaining the capital increased by a martjie,loan is secured and subject to repayment Irtdgether
with accrued interest on 30 March 2018 (the lograyenent schedule corresponds to the repayment slehed
presented above - investment credit from Alior Bank

The loans were granted for the purpose of finantiiegnvestments carried out by the Midas Group.

Loans granted to Mobyland

In 2013, as a result of loan agreements concludéd Mobyland (the “Agreements”), the Company grante
Mobyland loans of a total value of PLN 122,000,000der the Agreements, interest is calculated enbtisis
of the cost of Midas obtaining the capital (i.e.tbe basis of the discount rate on the bonds isenet April
2013 by Midas), increased by a margin. The repayrdate of the loans is subject to the maturity ddtéhe
bonds (the above series A bonds); The loans wereatept for the purpose of financing the investmeatsied
out by the Midas Group.

26.3. Remuneration of the Company's management staff

Year ended Year ended
31 December 201: 31 December 2012
Management Board
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Current employee benefits or similar (wages anaris and

bonuses) 1,2¢ 1,445
Supervisory Board

Current employee benefits or similar (wages anaris and

bonuses) ¢ 14

Total 1,350 1,459

27. Information on the remuneration of the certified auditor or entity
authorised to audit financial statements

The following table shows the fees of the entityhadsed to audit financial statements paid or p&ydor the
year ended on 31 December 2013 and 31 Decembert®3Qipe of service:

Year ended Year ended
Type of service 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Mandatory audit of financial statements* [ 40
Other services < 115
Total 75 155

Refers to Ernst & Young Audyt Polska Sp. z o.okSformerly Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0.)

28. Financial risk management

Key financial instruments used by the Company idellbans, bonds, cash and short-term depositsabbree
financial instruments are aimed at sourcing fundorgthe Company's operations. The Company alsootieer
financial instruments, such as trade receivables
and liabilities which arise directly during the cse of its activities.

The underlying principle applied by the Company ravd throughout the entire reporting period istodrade
in financial instruments.

Key risks of the Company's financial instrumentslude the interest rate risk, liquidity risk, curoy risk and
credit risk. The Management Board reviews and alapplicable rules for managing each such riskoseh
rules are summarised below. The Company also nrsnit@ risk of market prices for all financial inshents
held.

28.1. Interest rate risk

Changes in market interest rates may affect Mides/enues, costs, and operating cash flows. Thep@oyn
invests its free funds in instruments considerde sainstruments with short maturities.

Interest rate risk - sensitivity to changes
The table below shows the sensitivity of the gnosHit (loss) to reasonably possible changes iaradt rates,

assuming the constancy of other factors (in conmecwith loans granted and liabilities having aiahte
interest rate). The effect on equity and compreleriacome of the Company as a whole is not shown.

Increase/
decrease in percentage points Impact on gross financial result
Year ended 31 December 2013
PLN +1% 1,705
PLN -1% (1,705)
Year ended 31 December 2012
PLN +1% 1,380
PLN -1% (1,380)

28.2. Currency risk

The Company is not exposed to significant curreiglyon its transactions.
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28.3. Price risk

The price risk in Midas is associated with changethe current value of items measured at fairevalfia given
balance sheet item is based on market prices,alamde sheet total is subject to change and mushden in
profit, loss or change in the amount of capitale Dimly financial assets measured at fair valueutjindinancial
result both in 2013 and in 2012 was cash.

28.4. Credit risk

The maximum credit risk at Midas is reflected ie thalue of loans granted and cash.

With reference to financial assets of the Compamhsas cash and cash equivalents, the Companyis Gsk

appears when a counter-party is not able to payttse maximum exposure to such risk is equal tcctreying

amount of those instruments.

The Company invests its cash resources only intabfrI companies. Loans are granted to subsidiariésh

have a high balance of receivables from entitiegaad financial condition. In the opinion of the Maement
Board, the risk of loans not being repaid is nebley

28.5. Liquidity risk

The Company monitors the risk of funding shortag&iag a regular liquidity planning tool. This taakes into
account due dates/maturities of both investmendsfaancial assets (e.g. receivables accountsy dithencial
assets) and projected cash flows from operatinyites.

The Company's objective is to keep a balance betweatinuity and flexibility of funding through these of
various sources of financing, such as loans, corialgrapers, share or bond issues.

The table below shows the Company's liabilitiesat81 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 by maturit
date in contractual non-discounted figures.

31 December 2013
Under3 From3to12 Fromlto5

On demand months months years Over 5 years Total
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - 74C 2,287 50,212 - 53,239
Other financial liabilities - - - 583,772 583,772
Trade and other liabilities - 41t - - - 415
Total - 1,155 2,287 50,212 583,772 637,426

31 December 2012
Under3 From3to12 Fromlto5

On demand months months years Over 5 years Total
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 27,834 - - 27,834
Trade and other liabilities - 346 - - - 346
Total - 346 27,834 - - 28,180
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29. Financial instruments

29.1. Fair value of particular classes of financial instuments

The following table compares carrying amounts aidvialues of all financial instruments held by empany
by class and category of assets and liabilities.

Category as Carrying amount Fair value

_ _ or IAS 39 31 Decembel 31 Decembel 31 Decembel 31 Decembe
Financial assets p 2013 2012 2013 2012
Other non-current financial assets, of which: | LAR 306,774 - 29,509 E
- loans LAR 259,546 : 247,277
- embedded derivative FAFVFR 47,237 - 47,237 E
Other financial assets (current), of which: LAR 186,021 137,995 186,021 137,994
- loans LAR 186,021 137,995 186,021 137,995
Other receivables LAR 1 9 1 9
Cash and cash equivalents FAFVFR 65,543 134,036 65,543 134,036
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities (non-current), of which: OFLAC 313,123 - 300,317
+ bank credit OFLAC 45,58( 1 45,580
- bonds OFLAC 267,544 : 254,737 g
Other liabilities (current), of which: OFLAC 378 25,897 378 25,897
- commercial papers OFLAC 1 25,897 25,897
+ bank credit OFLAC 69 : 69 E
- trade liabilities OFLAC 309 - 309

Abbreviations used:

udtw — Financial assets held to maturity,

FAFVFR — Financial assets/ liabilities measurethitvalue through profit or loss,
LAR — Loans and receivables,

FAAS — Financial assets available for sale,

OFLAC — Other financial liabilities measured apitalised cost

Hierarchy of fair value as at 31 December 2013

Level 1 Level 2

Financial assets
Loans granted, of which:
- non-current, bearing interest at a floating iestrate

- current

Embedded derivative
Trade and other receivables -
Cash and cash equivalents 65,543

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loan, of which:

- non-current, bearing interest at a floating ieserate

- other - current

Liabilities from issue of bonds - -
Trade liabilities - 30¢

Level 3

433,298
247,277
186,021

47,232

45,64¢
45,58C
6S
254,737

Total

433,298
247,277
186,021

47,232

65,543

45,649
45,580
69
254,737
309

The fair value of current financial assets andiliitds does not differ from the carrying amountedio the short
time limit of maturity. The fair value of non-cunefinancial assets and liabilities having a vaeabterest rate
is close to the carrying amount due to the markaine of the interest rate (base rate plus margin).
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The fair value of non-current financial liabilitigsving a fixed interest rate was defined in acancg with
generally accepted valuation models based on ayssa@f discounted cash flows, while the most Bigant
information packet is the discount rate reflecting credit risk of contractual partners.

The option of early repurchase was valuated ugiad_tisen-Reimer binomial tree model. The varigbiif the
price of the bonds analysed was modelled. As thialivalue of the bonds, their value as at theuatibn date,
determined in accordance with the above descriptias accepted. The parameter of variability ofibeds
analysed was determined on the basis of an anafshe variability of the profitability of corpota bonds in
EUR with a rating of BBB and a maturity period ofé&ars.

29.2. Items of income, costs, profit and loss disclosed the statement of comprehensive
income, divided into categories of financial instrmments

Year ended 31 December 2013

Revenues/(costs Profit/(loss) on
Category as pe of operating Financial exchange ratg
Financial assets IAS 39 activities| revenues/(costs differences| Total
Other financial assets (non-current) | LAR 13,545 - 5 13,550
Other financial assets (current) LAR 8,604 - - 8,604
Embedded derivative FAFVFR (647) (647)
Cash and cash equivalents FAFVFR - 4,450 - 4,450
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank credit, of whichl OFLAC (1,643) - - (1,643)
- non-current, bearing interest at a
floating interest rate OFLAC (746) - - (746)
- short-term, with a fixed interest ratg OFLAC (897) - - (897)
Other liabilities (non-current) OFLAC (20,030) - - (20,030)
Other liabilities (current) OFLAC (337) - - (337)
Year ended 31 December 201@estated)
Category as per Profit/(loss) on
IAS 39 Revenues/(costs) ¢ Financial | exchange ratg
Financial assets operating activitieg revenues/(costs differences| Total
Other financial assets (current) LAR 6,467 - - 6,467
Cash and cash equivalents FAFVFR - 7,194 8 7,202
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and papers,
which: OFLAC (3,850) (8) (3,858)
- current OFLAC (3,850) (8) (3,858)

29.3. Interest rate risk

The table below presents the carrying amount ofXmpany's financial instruments exposed to therést rate
risk by age category.

31 December 2013

Fixed interest rate <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
Loans granted in the amount of

PLN 200,000,000 - - - - - 212,742 212,742
Loans granted in the amount of

EUR 75,000 287 - - - - - 287
Short-term bank deposits 65,164 - - - - - 65,164
Bonds of a nominal value of PLN

583,772,000 - - - - - 267,543 267,543
Variable interest rate <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
Loans granted in the amount of 185,734 - 46,804 - - - 232,538
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PLN 216.500,000
Bank credit - 4,156 41,424 - - - 45,580

31 December 2012

Fixed interest rati <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
Loans granted in the amount of

EUR 75,000 315 - - - - - 315
Short-term bank deposits 133,616 - - - - - 133,616
Variable interest rae <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
Loans granted for the amount of

PLN 130,500,000 137,680 - - - - - 137,680
Commercial papers with a nomine

value of PLN 28,750,000 25,897 - - - - - 25,897

Interest rates for floating rate financial instrumee are updated at least once a year. Interestnamcial
instruments with fixed interest rates is fixed floe entire period until the maturity/due date @fsth instruments.
Other financial instruments of the Company which aot included in the above tables do not bearasteand
are therefore not subject to the interest rate risk

30. Management of capital

A key objective of the Company's capital managen®id maintain a good credit rating and safe chpétios
which would support the Company's operating adisiand increase the value for its shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure andpvially changes in economic conditions, introduces
corresponding changes to that structure. In thesyeraded on 31 December 2013 and 31 December 262,
were no changes to the objectives, principles aadgsses applicable in this area.

The Company monitors the state of capital usinglélierage ratio, counted as the relation of net tielotal
capital increased by net debt. The Company’s net demprises interest-bearing borrowings and basslsed,
reduced by cash and equivalents and other finaaswgdts. Capital comprises convertible preferredeshand
equity belonging to shareholders of the parent.

31 December 201: 31 December 2012
Interest-bearing borrowings and issued papers ands 313,1¢ 25,897
Minus cash and cash equivalents and other finaas&gts 65,54 134,036
Net debt 247,649 (108,139)
Equity belonging to the shareholders of the parent 1,212,02 1,211,931
Total capital 1,212,020 1,211,931
Net capital and debt 1,459,669 1,103,792
Leverage ratio 0.13 (0.098)

31. Employment structure

The average headcount by position in the Compamingiihe years ended on 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012 was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 201: 31 December 2012
Management Board of the Company 1.1 0.55
Others 2.€ 2.65
Total 3.78 3.20
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32. Business combinations

On 24 April 2013, the Management Board of the Campaesolved to carry out a cross-border merger (the
“Merger”) of the Company and Conpidon Limited, ifmiah the Company has 100 per cent of the shardein
share capital. The decision on the Merger of them@amy and Conpidon reflected the belief of the Mgemaent
Board of the Company that the Merger was the fasted most effective way to streamline the strueirthe
Midas Group. The long-term goal of the Merger wastfie Company to directly hold 100 per cent ofshares

in the share capital of Aero2, which was in linghnihe strategy of the Midas Group. The Mergerhd t
Company with Conpidon was effected by way of: {gnsferring to the Company, as the sole sharehafler
Conpidon, all of the assets of Conpidon via unigersuccession, and (ii) dissolving Conpidon without
liquidating it, in accordance
with the provisions of the Commercial Companies €¢the “CCC”"), the Companies Law of Cyprus, and the
provisions of Directive 2005/56/EC of the Europ&arliament and of the Council. Following the Merges of
the date of the merger, the Company entered into aard all rights, obligations, assets and liakiitiof
Conpidon. Pursuant to the CCC,
due to the fact that the Company held all of thera in Conpidon, the Merger occurred without iasieg the
Company’s share capital, and the merger plan waevaluated by an expert. Detailed information aliba
Merger was published in Current Reports No. 14/284@15/2013. On 17 May 2013, the Management Bofard
the Company prepared and published (Current Redort 20/2013) a Report of the Management Board
justifying the Merger. On 21 June 2013, the OGMspdsresolution No. 21/2013, pursuant to which firaped
the Merger and authorised the Management Boardeo€bmpany to execute all actions required to perfhe
merger procedure.

On 25 April 2013, a plan was agreed and signed forerger by takeover between the companies Aeothéa
acquiring company) and Nova Capital (as the tacgetpany), in which Aero2 held a 100-per cent irgeie the
share capital. The decision to merge the two comgarsulted from the desire to optimise and stlieanthe
ownership structure of the Group. It was decided the merger of Aero2 and Nova Capital would belenan
the basis of the provisions of the CCC, in consegeeof which: (i) Nova Capital was wound up without
liquidation, (ii) all of the assets and liabilitie$ Nova Capital were transferred to or taken dwerero2 under
universal succession, and (iii) Aero2 entered aitdhe rights and obligations of Nova Capital. ©®dune 2013,
the Extraordinary General Meeting of ShareholdeffsAero2 and the Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders of Nova Capital adopted resolutionshenmerger of those companies as set out in tbeeab
merger plan. On 31 July 2013, the District Count fiee City of Warsaw, Division XII Commercial of&h
National Court Register, handed down a decisiomegister the merger of Aero2 as the acquiring compeaith
Nova Capital as the target company, by way of fearieg all of the assets of the target to the &ooy
company.

33. Post-balance sheet date events

On 8 January 2014, a further tranche of the loamfAlior was started up, in the amount of PLN 20lion,
transferred to Aero2. This loan is secured andesuilip repayment in full together with accrued riegt on 30
March 2018 (the loan repayment schedule corresptinttse repayment schedule presented in Note 26H3).
loan bears variable interest, calculated on theslmdshe cost of capital for Midas increased byargin.

On 15 January 2014, Midas granted a loan to Molylarthe amount of PLN 30,000,000. The loan is sstu
Interest on the loan is variable, calculated on libsis of the WIBOR 1M rate increased by a margime
repayment date of the loan is 31 December 2014.
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On 21 February 2014, the District Court for the iGd ity of Warsaw in Warsaw, Division XII Comméat of

the National Court Register, registered the memfeMidas with its registered office in Warsaw (dget
Acquiring Company) with the subsidiary Conpidonhwits registered office in Nicosia, Cyprus (as Trarget
Company). As a result of the merger, Midas enténéadl all the rights and obligations, assets anbiliiges of
Conpidon, which was dissolved without being liquéth In view of the fact that all of the sharegha Target
Company were held by the Acquiring Company, theddemwas effected without increasing the share abpit
the Acquiring Company. Upon completion of the Merddidas is a company formed as a result of a eross
border merger, and did not change its legal formsjriess name or registered office.

SIGNATURES OF MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD:

Krzysztof Adaszewski Maciej Kotlicki
/President of the Management Board/ /Vice Hesdiof the Management Board/
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Teresa Rogala
/on behalf of SFERIA
Spotka Akcyjna/
Warsaw, 21 March 2014

43



